¢
OMiiss\0>

County of Los Angeles
Quality and Productivity
Commission

565 Kenneth Hahn

Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street
Los Angeles, CA 90012

Telephone: (213) 974-1361
(213) 974-1390
(213) 893-0322

Website: gpc.lacounty.gov

Chair

William B. Parent
First Vice Chair
Will Wright

Second Vice Chair
Joe Waz

Immediate Past Chair
Nichelle M. Henderson

Jacki Bacharach*

Viggo Butler

Barry Donelan

Rodney C. Gibson, Ph.D.*
Nancy G. Harris

J. Shawn Landres, Ph.D.*
Huasha Liu

Edward T. MclIntyre*
Marsha D. Mitchell

E. Scott Palmer

Jeffrey Jorge Penichet
Dion Rambo

Mark A. Waronek

Executive Director
Jackie T. Guevarra, CPA

Program Manager
Jane Lam

Program Coordinators
Betty Belavek
*Chair Emeritus

EXECUTIVE OFFICE

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

“To enrich lives through
effective and caring service”

Los Angeles County

Quality and Productivity Commission
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING

Monday, January 26, 2026, 10:00 a.m.
Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration, Room 140
500 West Temple Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012

Members of the public may participate remotely or listen to the meeting
via telephone at:

Join Zoom Meeting
https://bos-lacounty-
gov.zoom.us/j/869013500227?pwd=ydebQF5Z2Y9S5w0sSDoRIj80acEedBw.1

Meeting ID: 869 0135 0022
Passcode: 271128
Call in Number: (669) 900-9128

Written Public Comment may also be submitted to Jackie Guevarra by
Sunday, January 25, 2026 (received by 4:00 p.m.) at
jguevarra@bos.lacounty.gov

*Any information received from the public by Sunday, January 25, 2026, at
4:00 p.m. will become part of the official meeting record.

MEETING AGENDA

Call to Order. ... Commissioner Parent
Land Acknowledgment®............c.ooiiiiin Commissioner Parent
Roll Call/Assembly Bill 2449...................coooeeat. Commissioner Parent

. Approval of the December 15, 2025, Meeting Minutes

Presentation and update on the e-Procurement implementation to
streamline and modernize the County’s purchasing and contracting
systems (45 minutes)............cooooiiiiiiinnn. Lawrence Gann, General
Manager, Purchasing & Contract Service, Internal Services Department

Chair's Report: Administrative Items, Ad Hoc Committee Status (5
MINUEES). ..o Commissioner Parent

Productivity Managers’ Network (PMN) Chair's Report: General Meeting
and Training (5 Minutes).........ccoiiiiiiiiie, Keisha Belmaster

Executive Director's Report: Commission Events Update, Calendar of
Events, Deadlines, Administrative ltems (2 minutes)...... Jackie Guevarra


https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbos-lacounty-gov.zoom.us%2Fj%2F86901350022%3Fpwd%3DydebQF5ZY9S5w0sSDoRlj8OacEedBw.1&data=05%7C02%7CJGuevarra%40bos.lacounty.gov%7Ce90d71a9a8854c9b92e308de4eda2aa4%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C639034896112888669%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Lsg6Uq1TJuHloR6nJN0X2zu450KLAPOFG%2FRoAvvzIgQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbos-lacounty-gov.zoom.us%2Fj%2F86901350022%3Fpwd%3DydebQF5ZY9S5w0sSDoRlj8OacEedBw.1&data=05%7C02%7CJGuevarra%40bos.lacounty.gov%7Ce90d71a9a8854c9b92e308de4eda2aa4%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C639034896112888669%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Lsg6Uq1TJuHloR6nJN0X2zu450KLAPOFG%2FRoAvvzIgQ%3D&reserved=0
mailto:jguevarra@bos.lacounty.gov

Quality and Productivity Commission
January 26, 2026

Page 2 of 3
9. Department Visit Ad Hoc Committee Report (2 minutes)................... Commissioner Harris
10. Strategic Learning Ad Hoc Committee Report (2 minutes)............... Commissioner Gibson

11. Leadership Conference Ad Hoc Committee Report (2 minutes)....Commissioner Bacharach
12. Productivity and Quality Awards Ad Hoc Committee Report (2 minutes)...Commissioner Waz

13. Countywide Criminal Justice Coordinating Committee (CCJCC) Update (2
01T LU L =) P Commissioner Parent

14. Commissioner Announcements regarding conferences, meetings, and gatherings of interest
to the Commission (2 minutes) — For Discussion Only

15. Commissioner Discussion on goals, ideas, future projects, and/or direction of the
Commission (2 minutes) — For Discussion Only

16. Matters not on the Posted Agenda (3 minutes) — to be presented and placed on a future
agenda — For Discussion Only

17. Public Comment (3 minutes for each speaker)

18. The next full Commission meeting will be held on Monday, March 23, 2026, at 10 a.m.

LOBBYIST REGISTRATION
Any person who seeks support or endorsement from the Commission on any official action may be subject to the provisions of
Los Angeles County Code, Chapter 2.160 relating to lobbyists. Violation of the lobbyist ordinance may result in a fine and other
penalties. For more information, call (213) 974-1093.

ACCOMMODATIONS
Accommodations, American Sign Language (ASL) interpreters, or assisted listening devices are available with at least 3-
business days notice before the meeting date. Agendas in Braille and/or alternate formats are available upon request. Please
telephone (213) 974-1431 (voice) or (213) 974-1707 (TDD), from 8:00 a.m.-5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Supporting documentation can be obtained at the Quality and Productivity Commission Office, 565 Kenneth Hahn Hall of
Administration, 500 West Temple Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012 or jguevarra@bos.lacounty.gov.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Commission meetings are open to the public. A member of the public may address the Commission on any Agenda item. In
addition, during the General Public Comment item on the agenda, a member of the public has the right to address the
Commission on items of interest that are not on the agenda but are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission. A
request to address the Commission must be submitted to Commission Staff prior to the item being called. Comments are limited
to a total of six (6) minutes per speaker per meeting, at up to two (2) minutes per item. The Commission may further limit public
input on any item, based on the number of people requesting to speak and the business of the Commission.



mailto:jalam@bos.lacounty.gov

Quality and Productivity Commission
January 26, 2026
Page 3 of 3

*LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

ON NOVEMBER 1, 2022, THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ADOPTED A FORMAL LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FOR THE
COUNTY. (STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS)

“The County of Los Angeles recognizes that we occupy land originally and still inhabited and cared for by the Tongva, Tataviam,
Serrano, Kizh, and Chumash Peoples. We honor and pay respect to their elders and descendants -- past, present, and emerging
-- as they continue their stewardship of these lands and waters. We acknowledge that settler colonization resulted in land seizure,
disease, subjugation, slavery, relocation, broken promises, genocide, and multigenerational trauma. This acknowledgment
demonstrates our responsibility and commitment to truth, healing, and reconciliation and to elevating the stories, culture, and
community of the original inhabitants of Los Angeles County. We are grateful to have the opportunity to live and work on these
ancestral lands. We are dedicated to growing and sustaining relationships with Native peoples and local tribal governments,
including (in no particular order) the: Fernandefio Tataviam Band of Mission Indians, Gabrielino Tongva Indians of California
Tribal Council, Gabrieleno/Tongva San Gabriel Band of Mission Indians, Gabrielefio Band of Mission Indians - Kizh Nation, San
Manuel Band of Mission Indians, San Fernando Band of Mission Indians. To learn more about the First Peoples of Los Angeles
County, please visit the Los Angeles City/County Native American Indian Commission website https://lanaic.lacounty.gov/.”



https://file.lacounty.gov/SDSInter/bos/sop/1132981_110122.pdf
https://lanaic.lacounty.gov/

County of Los Angeles
Quality and Productivity
Commission

565 Kenneth Hahn

Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street
Los Angeles, CA 90012

Telephone: (213) 974-1361
(213) 974-1390
(213) 893-0322

Website: gpc.lacounty.gov

Chair

William B. Parent

First Vice Chair

Will Wright

Second Vice Chair
Marsha D. Mitchell
Immediate Past Chair
Nichelle M. Henderson

Jacki Bacharach*

Viggo Butler

Barry Donelan

Rodney C. Gibson, Ph.D.*
Nancy G. Harris

J. Shawn Landres, Ph.D.*
Huasha Liu

Edward T. Mcintyre*

E. Scott Palmer

Jeffrey Jorge Penichet
Dion Rambo

Mark A. Waronek

Joe Waz

Executive Director
Jackie T. Guevarra, CPA

Program Manager
Jane Lam

Program Coordinators
Betty Belavek
Ruben Khosdikian

*Chair Emeritus

EXECUTIVE OFFICE

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

“To enrich lives through

effective and caring service”

Los Angeles County
QUALITY AND PRODUCTIVITY COMMISSION

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF
December 15, 2025, at 10:00 a.m.
Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration, Room 140
500 West Temple Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012

Members of the public may participate remotely or listen to the meeting via
telephone at:
Virtual Meeting
Call in Number: (669) 900-9128
Meeting ID: 844 2814 0093
Passcode: 847856
https://bos-lacounty-
gov.zoom.us/j/84428140093?pwd=b3pID0JuabkalWeTPOuy0OH4bjFIdNa.1

B R R TR TR R R R R R R S R R e R R R SR R SR S R R R TR T o R R R R R R SR R R TR R R SR R R R S SR R R R R R R R R L S R R R o ok

CALL TO ORDER
Commissioner Parent, Chair, called the meeting of the Quality and
Productivity Commission to order at 10:00 a.m.

THE FOLLOWING COMMISSIONERS WERE PRESENT (TAKEN BY
ROLL CALL):

Jacki Bacharach Edward T. Mclintyre
Viggo Butler E. Scott Palmer

Barry Donelan William B. Parent
Rodney C. Gibson Jeffrey Jorge Penichet
Nancy G. Harris Dion Rambo

Nichelle M. Henderson Mark A. Waronek

J. Shawn Landres Joe Waz

Huasha Liu Will Wright

ABSENT

Marsha D. Mitchell

PRODUCTIVITY MANAGERS’ NETWORK (PMN)
Arman Depanian, Second Vice Chair
Patricia Soltero Sanchez, Productivity and Quality Awards (PQA) Chair

OPENING REMARKS

Commissioner Parent welcomed everyone and noted the meeting is being
recorded. He announced that members of the public could send their
questions or comments to Jackie Guevarra during the meeting via email at
jguevarra@bos.lacounty.gov or via the chat feature. The public can inform
Jackie Guevarra via email or the chat feature which item(s) they have a
comment on. Any information received will become part of the official
meeting record.



https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbos-lacounty-gov.zoom.us%2Fj%2F84428140093%3Fpwd%3Db3pID0Juabka1WeTPOuy0H4bjFIdNa.1&data=05%7C02%7CJaLam%40bos.lacounty.gov%7C6166d18c9e0341a545dd08dd4c80b488%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C638750837835128058%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=esRq%2BJ%2F%2FAiNLuE329oxqpJeSwdUj6IeHsGHW2OAqSQg%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbos-lacounty-gov.zoom.us%2Fj%2F84428140093%3Fpwd%3Db3pID0Juabka1WeTPOuy0H4bjFIdNa.1&data=05%7C02%7CJaLam%40bos.lacounty.gov%7C6166d18c9e0341a545dd08dd4c80b488%7C7faea7986ad04fc9b068fcbcaed341f6%7C0%7C0%7C638750837835128058%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=esRq%2BJ%2F%2FAiNLuE329oxqpJeSwdUj6IeHsGHW2OAqSQg%3D&reserved=0
mailto:jguevarra@bos.lacounty.gov

Quality and Productivity Commission
December 15, 2025
Page 2

Members of the public were also given the opportunity to send their comments and questions
to Jackie Guevarra by December 14, 2025, 4:00 p.m. No written comments were received.

He also announced that each Commissioner will have the opportunity to speak on any
agenda item and vote on the items will be taken by roll call.

LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT (AGENDA #2)

On November 1, 2022, the Board of Supervisors adopted a formal Land Acknowledgement
for the County. Commissioner Parent opened the Commission’s public meeting with a verbal
delivery of the Land Acknowledgement, which can be read here:
https://lacounty.gov/government/about-la-county/land-acknowledgment/.

ASSEMBLY BILL (AB) 2449 (AGENDA #3)

Commissioner Parent announced that AB 2449 became effective on January 1, 2023.
Provisions of this bill permit members of a legislative body of a local agency to participate
remotely and to not identify their location. There were no Commissioners attending the
meeting remotely.

APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 27, 2025, MINUTES (AGENDA #4)
Commissioner Bacharach moved to approve the minutes of October 27, 2025, seconded by
Commissioner Wright, with the following revisions:
e Page 3, under Chair’'s Report (Agenda #7):
o Add “Chair,” after “Commissioner Parent,” on the first line
o Change “Director Guevarra and I’ to “the Commission Chair and Executive
Director” — under 4t and 6t bullet points
o Added to the last bullet point: “[Correction: Only 6 Commissioners have terms
expiring January 1, 2026.]"
The minutes, as amended, were unanimously approved by voice vote.

PRODUCTIVITY INVESTMENT FUND (PIF) STATUS AND FUND BALANCE REPORT AS

OF FISCAL YEAR 2024-25, 2N° QUARTER (AGENDA #5)

Commissioner Gibson, Productivity Investment Board (PIB) Chair, reported the following:

e As of November 17, 2025, the PIF balance is $3,690,937.

e In 2025, fifteen PIF applications were submitted, four of which were approved by the full
Commission and received funding for their projects.

¢ Inthe second quarter of Fiscal Year (FY) 2025-2026, the PIB heard two projects. Neither
project were passed by the PIB to the full Commission for consideration.

e With the budget challenges and the Commission not receiving any additional funds for
FY 2025-2026, Commissioner Gibson opened the floor for discussion regarding the future
of PIF. Commissioners made the following comments:

o Recommend that the Chair appoint an ad hoc Committee that includes members of
the PIB and PMN to understand why departments are submitting proposals that do
not meet the PIF requirements.

o Provide clearer instructions to potential applicants on the PIF requirements, including
what the Commission will and will not do, and formulate it into a simple, shareable
report that includes proposals that would be considered favorably and problems that
have been identified with previously submitted proposals.



https://lacounty.gov/government/about-la-county/land-acknowledgment/

Quality and Productivity Commission
December 15, 2025
Page 3

O

Meet with the PIB Advisory Committee members to discuss the quality of applications
being received in the past year. Many proposals are not ready to be presented to the
PIB. The PIB Advisory Committee needs to be more empowered so that departments
take their recommendations seriously.

Articulate that a successful application is one that directly results in cost savings or
revenue generation.

Ensure due process, but also create moments of check-in. When a project is reviewed
by the PIB Advisory Committee, the PIB hears a presentation and almost every time,
the PIB Advisory Committee Chair runs through a checklist. Part of the department’s
revisions should include a box to indicate how the presentation has changed since it
was presented to the PIB Advisory Committee.

If a loan defaults, the department can come back to the Commission to ask for loan
forgiveness.

There are two separate decisions for the Commission to make: 1) whether to fund a
project or not, and 2) how to fund the project. In terms of whether to fund the project
or not, the Commission already has a good process in place. For how to fund the
project, the Commission will not be able to give loans if there is no additional
funding/budget.

Commissioners also expressed that some Productivity and Quality Awards (PQA)
applications submitted in 2025 were not all good quality and did not reflect the type of
innovative projects the Commission wants to see.

The QPC Chair will work with QPC staff to prepare and summarize background
materials needed for a deeper discussion at the January 26, 2026 full Commission
meeting.

Productivity Managers in attendance made the following comments:

O

In response to the PIF comments: The PIB Advisory Committee is typically fiscally
conservative. However, the Committee cannot stop departments who choose to move
forward even after receiving a “no recommendation” feedback from the Committee.
In response to PIF comments: There are communication gaps between the
Productivity Managers and the executives that they report to. There are no guidelines
on who can be a Productivity Manager.

In response to the PQA comment: At the intersection of QPC is improvement. It is not
productive to read over 100 PQA applications in eight hours. Applications need to
show fundamental baseline of data, numbers, and show how there is improvement.
There are many fantastic programs, but not all are innovative in nature.

After discussion, Commissioner Landres made a motion that the QPC Chair strongly
consider coordinating with the Chairs of the PMN Executive Committee, PIB Advisory
Committee, and the PMN PQA ad hoc Committee to establish joint committees to review
the PQA and PIF processes. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Bacharach and
unanimously approved by voice vote.

Additionally, the following requests were made by the Commissioner Parent:

O

Agendize, for discussion and possible action, the PIF Status and Fund Balance Report
for the January 2026 full Commission meeting.



Quality and Productivity Commission
December 15, 2025
Page 4

CHAIR’S REPORT: ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS,

o Agendize, for discussion and possible action, the review of PQA applications and
guidelines for the first PQA ad hoc Committee meeting in January 2026.

AD HOC COMMITTEE STATUS

(AGENDA #6)

Commissioner Parent, Chair, reported the following:

The next QPC meeting is scheduled for Monday, January 26, 2026.

As reported at the October 27, 2025, Commission meeting, Fesia Davenport, Chief

Executive Officer (CEQO), went on extended leave effective Wednesday, October 8, 2025,

through early 2026. Joe Nicchitta will serve as the Acting CEO and Jeramy Gray will serve

as Acting Chief Deputy.

o In place of the biannual meeting with Fesia Davenport, the Commission Chair and
Executive Director are scheduled to meet with Joe Nicchitta on Thursday, January 29,
2026 (originally scheduled for November 20, 2025).

There are 6 Commissioners with terms expiring on January 1, 2026. All 6 have confirmed

their interests for reappointments. The related Board Offices will contact and work with

their appointees on their reappointments. We have sent a request to the CEO to reappoint
the 3 joint appointees.

Last Name First Name T(::jrm 2CE Appointed by
anuary 1
Penichet Jeffrey Jorge 2026 18t District
Harris Nancy G. 2026 2"d District
Mitchell Marsha D. 2026 24 District
Gibson Rodney C. 2026 CEO/QPC
Mclntyre Edward T. 2026 CEO/QPC
Wright Will 2026 CEO/QPC

On April 1, 2025, the Board approved the Motion on “Reviewing Best Practices and
Exploring the Creation of a Comprehensive Emergency Registry System for Older Adults
and Persons with Disabilities in Los Angeles County.” The motion directed the Director of
Aging and Disabilities Department in collaboration with the CEO, Office of Emergency
Management (OEM), the LA County Fire Chief, and the Sheriff, and in consultation with
the Directors of various departments, including the QPC to conduct an unbiased feasibility
study to incorporate recommendations for the development and implementation of a
functional needs registry, inter-department and inter-jurisdictional information sharing
protocols, and recommendations on protocols for proactive outreach during an
emergency where evacuation assistance may be required by using existing departmental
resources, subject matter experts, and stakeholders and report back with a written report
within 120 days.

o Jane Lam, Program Manager, has been in contact with the Aging and Disabilities
Department since April through December 2025. On July 29, 2025, the Department
indicated that they had asked for an extension so that they can hire a consultant. The
work of the consultant will include reaching out to the QPC. This should have occurred
in late September or early October. As of December 1, 2025, Commission staff have
not received a new update.



Quality and Productivity Commission
December 15, 2025
Page 5

The 2026 Leadership Conference ad hoc Committee met on December 10, 2025.
Commissioner Parent asked Commissioner Bacharach, ad hoc Committee Chair, to
provide an update on the meeting. Commissioner Bacharach shared that the Music
Center is under new operational management, and there is concern about increased
costs. QPC staff researched six venues: Bob Hope Patriotic Hall, Hall of Administration—
Board Hearing Room, Los Angeles County Museum of Art, Los Angeles River Center and
Gardens, The Music Center, and Natural History Museum. After discussion, it was
decided that the conference would continue to be held at the Music Center primarily for
the following reasons:

o Higher possibility of Supervisor attendance due to proximity to the Music Center

o Increase in time/planning/burden on Commission staff would outweigh a possible

increase in cost with the Music Center

Senate Bill (SB) 707, signed by the Governor in 2025 and taking effect next year in 2026,
amends the Brown Act, which will have significant impacts on counties, particularly on
Board of Supervisors’ meetings and meetings of subsidiary bodies. There is a webinar
designed for County employees on December 15, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. Discussion topics
will include an overview of key changes to the law pursuant to SB 707, as well as
exploration of the evolving legislative landscape of the Brown Act. The webinar will be
recorded, and Commission staff will share any information provided at that meeting.

PRODUCTIVITY MANAGERS NETWORK (PMN) CHAIR’'S REPORT: GENERAL

MEETING AND TRAINING (AGENDA #7)

Arman Depanian, PMN Second Vice Chair, reported the following on behalf of Keisha
Belmaster, PMN Chair:

There were 22 Productivity Managers who joined the PMN for its final General Meeting

and Training of the year on Wednesday, November 5, 2025, at the Rancho Los Amigos

National Rehabilitation Center. Patricia Soltero Sanchez, Productivity Manager (Health

Services), hosted the meeting. Shadi Kardan, Assistant Executive Director, Executive

Office of the Board of Supervisors, presented on the Governance Reform Task Force and

Measure G efforts. Jackie Guevarra, Executive Director, presented on the Department

Visit process.

The PMN Holiday Reception was held on Wednesday, December 3, 2025, at the Vermont

Corridor. Julie Benavides, Productivity Manager (Human Resources), hosted the

reception. There were 19 Productivity Managers in attendance, as well as Commissioners

Mclintyre, Palmer, and Waz.

Sammy Skinner, 2025 Nominating Committee Member, announced the results of the

PMN election at the holiday reception. The 2026 PMN Executive Committee members

are:

Chair: Keisha Belmaster (Health Services-Harbor-UCLA)

First Vice Chair: Heidi Oliva (Fire)

Second Vice Chair: Arman Depanian (Children and Family Services)

Training and Education Chair: Walter Tucker IV (Internal Services)

PQA Co-Chairs: Sara Keating (LA County Library) and Patricia Soltero Sanchez

(Health Services-Rancho Los Amigos National Rehabilitation Center)

Executive Advisor: Jennifer Coultas (Child Support Services)

o Arman Depanian will continue to chair the PIB Advisory Committee and Stephanie
Todd (CEO/Chief Information Office) will continue as Vice Chair

O O O O O

(@)



Quality and Productivity Commission
December 15, 2025
Page 6

e The PMN Executive Committee will meet on January 7, 2026, to plan the first PMN
General Meeting and Training, scheduled for Wednesday, February 11, 2026.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT: COMMISSION EVENTS UPDATE, CALENDAR OF
EVENTS, DEADLINES, ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS (AGENDA #8)

Jackie Guevarra, Executive Director, reported the following:

e Staff are working on and/or preparing for various activities/meetings:

o Winter 2025 Quarterly Newsletter (due out by December 31, 2025).

o PIF 40t Anniversary commemorative booklet.

o Finalizing the ad hoc committee membership.

o Distributing the 2026 calendar. The first meeting in 2026 is the Department Visit ad
hoc Committee meeting on January 5, 2026.

o Scheduled speakers/topics for the January 26, 2026 meeting. Suggestions include:
= Sheriff Robert Luna, Sheriff's Department
= Matt Peterson, Chair, Blue Ribbon Commission, CEO, Los Angeles Cleantech

Incubator; Former Chief Sustainability Officer, City of Los Angeles
= Homeless Initiative update after Measure A passed
= Michael Owh, Director, Internal Services Department for an eProcurement update
e Working on the FY 2026-2027 budget and a request for a mid-year budget adjustment.

(Note: The QPC’s Head Board Specialist position was curtailed from the Commission’s

FY 2025-2026 budget. Staff assigned to the position was transferred to the Commission

Services Division and will continue working with the QPC on an as-needed basis.)

e Status report on Analysis of County Commissions:

o Waiting for Board of Supervisors’ adoption of the report’s recommendations.

o Planning to have a preliminary discussion with the Executive Officer on the potential
merger with the commissions noted in the report.

o Commissioners commented that the Executive Office of the Board of Supervisors
should consider the non-budgetary cost of each decision made. Residuals for the
commissions that are sunsetting can be absorbed by the QPC, but merging should be
postponed until the Board of Supervisors expands as approved under Measure G.

ELECTION OF COMMISSION OFFICERS FOR 2026 AND NOMINATING AD HOC

COMMITTEE REPORT (AGENDA #9)

Commissioner Bacharach, Chair, Nominating ad hoc Committee, reported the following:

e Commissioners acknowledged the participation of Commissioners Gibson, Harris, and
Mclintyre on the ad hoc Committee.

e Based on the responses and nominations received from Commissioners, the
recommended slate of officers was as follows:
o William B. Parent, Chair
o Will Wright, First Vice Chair
o Joe Waz, Second Vice Chair

e After Commissioner Bacharach opened the floor for further discussion and/or
nominations, Commissioners acknowledged the lack of diversity in the proposed slate.
However, Commissioners also affirmed that the QPC has a positive track record of
balanced slate of officers in gender, ethnicity, expertise, etc. At this time, continuity of
Commission leadership is critical, given the budget crisis, challenges within the County,




Quality and Productivity Commission
December 15, 2025
Page 7

and the upcoming changes brought on by Measure G. Commissioners emphasized their
commitment to shared leadership. No other nominations were made from the floor.

o After discussion, Commissioner Landres made a motion to approve the recommended
slate of officers by acclimation, seconded by Commissioner Gibson. The motion was
unanimously approved by voice vote.

DEPARTMENT VISIT AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORT (AGENDA #10)
Commissioner Henderson, Chair, Department Visit ad hoc Committee, reported the
following:

e All 21 Department Visits were completed for the year.

e On the agenda to be received and filed is the Department Visit Report for the Executive
Office of the Board of Supervisors (October 23, 2025).

e Commissioners were thanked for their time and attendance at the visits this year. This
supports the Commission’s core mission to promote quality, productivity, efficiency and
innovation throughout the County.

e Commission staff are working to schedule 16 Department Visits in 2026. So far, the first
visit is scheduled for March 5, 2026, with the Fire Department.

e Commissioners were reminded that the QPC policy requires each Commissioner to sign
up for at least 3 Department Visits every year.

COMMISSION STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE (AGENDA #11)

Commissioner Parent, Chair, reported that the Strategic Plan is an excellent vehicle for the
Commission to formally discuss and show its agenda. The consultant takes work off the plate
of the staff and organizes all the ambitious things the Commission has been discussing. It
also engages the Commission’s authorizing environment from the Executive Office of the
Board of Supervisors, in that discussion in a way where the Commission is not one-on-one
defending or executing things. The Strategic Plan can be used as a tool to make the case for
the Commission’s future.

Jackie Guevarra, Executive Director, added that in light of all the changes that are coming, it
is important for all the Commissioners to hear the same message.

Commissioners expressed concerns about the utility of the Strategic Plan and the associated
cost to hire a consultant. Commissioners added that the strategic planning process is an
opportunity to showcase how the County can advance priorities through time. The Strategic
Plan is an asset which demonstrates the efforts by the Commission to preserve the
innovation function in a reimagined County government structure. The consultant should not
be a traditional strategic planning facilitator, rather they should be experts in how local
governments innovate.

COMMISSIONER ANNOUNCEMENTS REGARDING CONFERENCES, MEETINGS, AND

GATHERINGS OF INTEREST TO THE COMMISSION (AGENDA #12) - FOR

DISCUSSION ONLY

Commissioner Parent, Chair, reported the following:

e The Los Angeles County Training Center (LACTC) Graduation Ceremony for cohort #2,
the first all-women firefighters with the Justice, Care and Opportunities Department
(JCOD) Firefighter Training Program, was held on December 5, 2025. The QPC awarded




Quality and Productivity Commission
December 15, 2025
Page 8

the Silver Eagle Award to JCOD for the LACTC at this year's PQA luncheon.
Commissioners Henderson and Waz attended the graduation and noted that it was a
beautiful event. They left the event thinking about how they could help better promote
the program.

e Commissioner Landres also commented that JCOD hosts an annual summit at WePlay
Studios in Inglewood to serve the community. Multiple department heads, including the
District Attorney and Sheriff, attended and spoke. There is a community element where
they did expungements and had County informational booths. He suggested that we
consider their venue for a future leadership conference.

COMMISSIONER DISCUSSION ON GOALS, IDEAS, FUTURE PROJECTS, AND/OR
DIRECTION OF THE COMMISSION (AGENDA #13) — FOR DISCUSSION ONLY
None

MATTERS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA TO BE PRESENTED AND PLACED ON A
FUTURE AGENDA (AGENDA #14) — FOR DISCUSSION ONLY
None

PUBLIC COMMENT (AGENDA #15)
None

ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Waronek moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Commissioner Palmer.
The meeting adjourned at 11:58 a.m. The next full Commission meeting will be on Monday,
January 26, 2026, at 10:00 a.m.




	QPC Minutes - December 15, 2025 FINAL.pdf
	COMMISSIONER DISCUSSION ON GOALS, IDEAS, FUTURE PROJECTS, AND/OR DIRECTION OF THE COMMISSION (AGENDA #13) – FOR DISCUSSION ONLY
	None

	E-Procurement Contract Ivalua Inc. 9-30-25 Item 31 (Board Letter Only).pdf
	Subject
	It is REcommendED that THE Board:
	3. Approve and authorize the attached ISD appropriation adjustment (Attachment 2) to use $8,790,000 from the obligated fund balance Committed for Information Technology (IT) Enhancements, commonly known as the County’s IT Legacy Modernization Fund to ...
	Purpose/Justification of Recommended Actions
	Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals
	9.30.2025 Board Letter Attachments - Board Submittal-eProc-2025 - ISD.pdf
	E-PROCUREMENT SYSTEM AND RELATED SERVICES BL_5.26.2025 - Copy.pdf
	Subject
	It is REcommendED that THE Board:
	Purpose/Justification of Recommended Actions
	Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals

	E-PROCUREMENT SYSTEM AND RELATED SERVICES BL_5.26.2025 - Copy.pdf
	Subject
	It is REcommendED that THE Board:
	Purpose/Justification of Recommended Actions
	Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals

	e-Procurement Contract_Attachments July_782025.pdf
	Blank Page
	Exhibit A - SOW for e-Procurement 7.8.2025.pdf
	1.0 INTRODUCTION
	1.1 Background
	1.2 Background of Current System
	1.2.1 Procurement System Architecture


	2.0 SCOPE SUMMARY
	2.1 Provide a centralized and standardized, configurable Contractor hosted, fully integrated SaaS System that will support County processes, procedures, workflows and forms that can be used by County Departments, while reducing the need for paper/hard...
	2.2 Provide a user friendly, clear and intuitive System and user interface to aid in adoption, acceptance and use of the System Countywide.
	2.3 Provide comprehensive procurement reports, analytics and business intelligence tools;
	2.4 Provide an easy-to-use public-facing portal with features such as vendor registration, including files attachments i.e. certifications, proof of insurance, account maintenance, access to bid opportunities and secure/confidential features such as b...
	2.5 Centralized, mobile and user-friendly System that integrates all the components of the procurement process seamlessly and automates manual processes including alerts and approvals, with the capability to process transactions based on the volume an...
	2.6 Provide all professional services for configurations, in scope data conversion and migration, reports, dashboards, development of forms, integration, implementation, testing, training and post production support;
	2.7 Provide the flexibility to take advantage of advancements in functionality and technology that would enable significant improvements in business and administrative practices and efficiencies as part of the Subscription Services package applicable ...
	2.8 Provide ability to support file attachments and export procurement data (standard System file formats);
	2.9 Provide transparency of County processes, vendor utilization, and County procurements;
	2.10 Reduce/eliminate duplication of work and streamline procurement processes;
	2.11 Host internal catalogs and interface through punch out to vendor catalogs for secure purchasing efficiency with approved suppliers as of Go-Live for Release 2;

	3.0 ADMINISTRATION
	3.1 County Resources
	3.1.1 County’s Project Director
	3.1.2 County’s Project Manager
	3.1.3 Designated County Staff

	3.2 Contractor Furnished Items
	3.3 Contractor Resources: Key Staff
	3.3.1 Contractor Project Director
	3.3.2 Contractor’s Project Manager


	4.0 PROJECT MANAGEMENT
	4.1 General Requirements
	4.1.1 The Contractor shall employ best practices and standards in the performance of all work, including but not limited to the following: full planning, monitoring, supervision, risk management tracking, and control for all project activities during ...
	4.1.2 The Contractor shall provide a complete and comprehensive set of services for the implementation and deployment of the System.
	4.1.3 Contractor staff shall be responsible for specific activities, as determined by Contractor’s Project Manager, including working with County staff, providing technical expertise needed to implement and deploy the System, developing workflows, req...
	4.1.4 After an unsuccessful escalation process following discussion with the Contractor, the County reserves the right to require a change in the Contractor’s staff if the assigned Contractor’s staff is not, in the opinion of the County, adequately se...
	4.1.5 At County’s request and discretion, Contractor is required to attend scheduled meetings and any ad-hoc meetings, which will be virtual, unless County requires an in-person meeting in a particular instance, with reasonable advance notice from the...

	4.2 Project Phases
	4.2.1 Phase 1 - Discovery/Planning (Align)
	4.2.2 Phase 2 - Implementation (Envision)
	4.2.3 Phase 3 - Deployment (Achieve)
	4.2.4 Phase 4 - Post-Implementation Support (Hypercare)
	4.2.5 Phase 5 - Subscription Services


	5.0 TASKS & DELIVERABLES
	5.1 Phase 1 - Discovery/Planning
	5.1.1 Task 1: Incoming Orientation Plan
	5.1.1.1 Contractor shall plan and conduct an Incoming Orientation Plan meeting with ISD, and other project stakeholders. Contractor shall develop a draft meeting agenda prior to conducting the meeting.
	5.1.1.2 Incoming Orientation Plan for System shall include:
	1. Any information, data, and documentation required from existing systems, consultants and subject matter experts.
	2. Activities needed to ensure appropriate knowledge transfer from existing systems, consultants and subject matter experts to Contractor, regarding existing functionality and business processes.
	3. The roles and responsibilities assigned to County personnel and to the Contractor for all activities.

	5.1.1.3 Contractor shall submit a draft meeting agenda to the County Project Manager within five (5) business days following Contract's Effective Date for approval.

	DELIVERABLE 1 – Incoming Orientation Agenda and Plan
	€ Incoming Orientation Agenda
	€ Incoming Orientation Plan for eProcurement System
	€ Conduct the Incoming Orientation Plan Meeting within seven (7) business days following Contract's Effective Date
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 1.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.1.2 Task 2: Business Process Review
	5.1.2.1 The Contractor and the County will collaborate to identify the list of To-Be processes to be reviewed, designed, and enabled;
	5.1.2.2 Workshops by functional area, including System functionality and business intelligence/data analytic capabilities;
	5.1.2.3 Use of the selected solution software in the facilitation of the workshops;
	5.1.2.4 Identification of process improvement opportunities for each process area;
	5.1.2.5 Identification of change impacts;
	5.1.2.6 Inclusion of agency participants beyond the County Project Team members; and
	5.1.2.7 Production of To-Be business process design documents that capture a profile of the business process, process flow diagrams, inputs, outputs, and linkages to other processes and modules.
	5.1.2.8 Conduct an impact assessment of the To-Be-Process; prepare and provide the County with an impact assessment report which shall include identification of the critical impacts, insufficiently described requirements and mitigation measures to be ...
	5.1.2.9 Policy development is not included in the scope of this proposal. Any relevant and required updates (change impacts), resulting from the Contractor implementation will be identified by the County during the Business Process Review deliverable ...

	5.1.3 Task 3: Implementation Plan and Schedule
	5.1.3.1 The Implementation Plan shall, at a minimum, include the following:
	1. A plan for managing, monitoring and tracking of progress of completion of tasks and Deliverables throughout the entire Implementation of the System as required in this SOW,
	2. An approach to completing all work described in this SOW, including a work breakdown structure with task descriptions, associated Deliverables, and resource requirements, including but not limited to task and Deliverable schedules, dependencies, cr...
	3. Configuration Management. All configuration items will be listed and fully tracked from the approved design until full acceptance, in the CSE (Customer Support Extranet) system of the Contractor. County’s personnel will enter their test results in ...
	4. Overall project management methodology and any additional items identified by the Contractor required for a successful implementation,
	5. Approach to meeting deadlines and handling delays.
	6. Proposed County review/resolution period for each Deliverable.
	7. Procedures for the System production turnover.

	5.1.3.2 Implementation Schedule which shall include, at a minimum, the following:
	1. All Deliverables, tasks, and other work.
	2. Start date and completion date for each Deliverable, task, and other work.
	3. Proposed County review period for each Deliverable.
	4. Time required to complete all tasks and subtasks.
	5. Specific milestones to determine the project’s progress and to   evaluate Contractor’s performance in meeting the requirements of this contract;


	DELIVERABLE 3 – Implementation Plan and Schedule
	€ Implementation Plan*
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 3.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.

	5.2 Phase 2 - Implementation
	5.2.1 Task 4: Quality Control and Issue Resolution Plan
	5.2.1.1 Quality Control
	1. Method in which Contractor intends to ensure the quality of the services provided under the Contract.
	2. The Resolution process from the time an issue is identified until it is resolved, including the escalation process that takes place when an issue cannot be resolved without involving higher level Contractor personnel. Include the names and contact ...
	3. Method of monitoring to ensure that Contract requirements are being met, including, but not limited to response times, Operations, Maintenance, Performance and Service Level Requirements, and how often reports identifying these issues are reviewed ...
	4. Mechanism Contractor uses to maintain records of all maintenance activity conducted by Contractor, any corrective action taken, the time a problem was first identified, a clear description of the problem, and the time elapsed between identification...
	5. Explanation of the process used from the time a formal complaint or Contract Discrepancy Report (CDR) has been received until such time a complaint or CDR has been resolved and completed.

	5.2.1.2 Issue Resolution
	1. Issue identification;
	2. Issue tracking, reporting, and trending;
	3. Issue review, prioritization, and assignment;
	4. Issue analysis;
	5. The Resolution process from the time an issue is identified until it  has been resolved;
	6. Issue escalation; including the escalation process that takes place, the names and contact information of those involved in the escalation process and the time frames or schedules of when they would be contacted;
	7. Issue follow-up (for resolutions with lead time); and
	8. Impact to the overall project schedule and budget.


	DELIVERABLE 4 – Quality Control and Issue Resolution Plan
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 4.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.2 Task 5: Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan
	5.2.2.1 This Task 5 deliverable describes the County’s business continuity and disaster recovery plan (the “Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan) to be developed to ensure the County maintains or quickly resumes its essential functions in the ev...
	5.2.2.2 The Contractor shall provide a Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan, including details on how System and software backups and backups of County data are performed. The Contractor will leverage Contractor’s Contingency Plan when preparing...
	5.2.2.3 The Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan shall include a business impact analysis to determine the areas in the County’s technical infrastructure that are required. The Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan shall describe each of th...
	5.2.2.4 The Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan shall serve as a master plan for responding to System outages, ensuring continuity of business operations, and recovery from a disaster. In this Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan, Contrac...
	5.2.2.4.1 Business impact analysis of the System functionality and the County Data for the System that identifies and prioritizes the critical systems and components;
	5.2.2.4.2  Emergency mode of operations that provides the procedures to enable business continuity and recover from the emergency mode of operation with minimal impact on Users; and
	5.2.2.4.3 Command and control processes and procedures that delineate specific roles and responsibilities, communication, and actions that County’s staff must follow in an emergency.
	5.2.2.5 Procedures for performing business continuity/disaster recovery testing during implementation.   In addition to the testing during implementation, the business continuity/disaster recovery testing should be conducted annually. The procedure fo...
	5.2.2.5.1 Readiness to switch-over to the backup site for Production Use when primary site is down; Production Use is the actual use of the System in the production environment to process live data in County's day-to-day operations and use of the System.
	5.2.2.5.2 Test results reports; and
	5.2.2.5.3 County updates to the Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan based on revisions to Contractor’s Business Continuity / Disaster Recovery Plan.
	5.2.2.6 Exercise log that documents the calendar day(s) when the County’s Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan is tested, what the nature of the test(s) are, any problems identified during each test, and corrective actions to be taken. Establish...
	5.2.2.7 Revision history that documents any changes made to the Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan. Contractor shall maintain a backup of the System, County Data, and System configuration as set forth in the Contract and per contractual RPO co...

	DELIVERABLE 5 – Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan
	5.2.3 Task 6: Project Controls, Standards, and Procedures (Phase 2 – Implementation)
	5.2.3.1 Managing Project Documentation
	5.2.3.2 Meeting Procedures
	5.2.3.3 Business Process Review Standards
	5.2.3.4 Development Standards
	5.2.3.5 Configuration Standards
	5.2.3.6 Software Change Control Procedures
	5.2.3.7 Quality Assurance
	5.2.3.8 Scope Management
	5.2.3.9 Deliverable Outlines
	5.2.3.10 Deliverable Reviews
	5.2.3.11 Risk Mitigation

	DELIVERABLE 6 – Project Control, Standards, and Procedures
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 6.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.4 Task 7: Change Management and Communications Plan
	5.2.4.1 The Contractor shall provide a method and approach, guidance for best practices, and mentoring to support a successful transition to the new System enabled business processes and related processes affected by the software. The Contractor shall...
	5.2.4.2 The Contractor shall develop a Communications Plan document that defines the communication objectives, audiences (including the respective level of detail), recommended communications document and delivery methods, recommended communication ve...
	5.2.4.3 The Change Management and Communication Plan shall include at a minimum the following:
	1. Approach to County communications, configuration management, stakeholder communication.  (Changes, in this context, refer to changing the functionality of the System or adding additional functionality.)
	2. The approach shall ensure that the impacts and rationale for each change are analyzed, documented and coordinated before being approved. The change management process may vary from item to item, as determined by the County.
	3. A Communications Schedule Matrix to manage on-going stakeholder communications. It shall include a comprehensive listing of the County communication vehicles as well as recommendations of when to use each.
	4. The roles and responsibilities assigned to County personnel and to the Contractor in the communications process.


	DELIVERABLE 7 – Change Management and Communications Plan
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 7.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.5 Task 8: Project Work Status Report
	5.2.5.1 A listing of significant departures from the Implementation Plan with explanations of causes and effects on other areas, and remedies to achieve realignment;
	5.2.5.2 Changes to schedule
	5.2.5.3 A listing of tasks completed since the last report, including progress/completion of configuration work;
	5.2.5.4 A listing of tasks that were delayed and reasons for delay, with revised completion dates and remediation steps;
	5.2.5.5 Updates for previously delayed tasks;
	5.2.5.6 Planned activities for the next scheduled period;
	5.2.5.7 Identification and discussion of any project risks, with proposed mitigation; and
	5.2.5.8 Summary of major concerns and issues encountered;
	5.2.5.9 Identification and discussion of any security issues; and
	5.2.5.10 Any other topics that require attention from the County.

	DELIVERABLE 8 – Project Work Status Reports
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 8.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.6 Task 9: Functional Requirements
	5.2.6.1 Contractor shall provide an eProcurement System that meets the functional requirements identified in SOW Attachment 1 (Functional Requirements), as indicated as ‘Available’ or ‘Configurable’ by Contractor. The System shall not be limited to th...
	5.2.6.2 Contractor shall document its design for the System and provide a Functional Requirements Document to demonstrate that it meets the: (i) functional requirements set forth in SOW Attachment 1 (Functional Requirements) as indicated as ‘Available...
	5.2.6.3 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Functional Requirements Documents and determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Contractor will submit a report indicating such for County's review and approv...

	DELIVERABLE 9 – Functional Requirements
	€ Functional Requirements meeting the Requirements of SOW Attachment 1 (Functional Requirements)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 9.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.7 Task 10: Technical Requirements
	5.2.7.1 Contractor shall provide an eProcurement System that meets the Technical Requirements identified in SOW Attachment 2 (Technical Requirements), as indicated as ‘Available’ or ‘Configurable’ by Contractor. The System shall not be limited to this...
	5.2.7.2 Contractor shall document its design for the System and provide a Technical Requirements document for the System to demonstrate that it meets the: (i) technical requirements set forth in SOW Attachment 2 (Technical Requirements) as indicated a...
	5.2.7.3 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Technical Requirements Documents and determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Contractor will submit a report indicating such for County's review and approva...

	DELIVERABLE 10 – Technical Requirements
	€ Technical Requirements meeting the Requirements of SOW Attachment 2 (Technical Requirements)
	€ Technical Requirements Document for Release 1*
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 10.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.8 Task 11: Configuration Requirements
	5.2.8.1 Contractor shall provide an eProcurement System that meets the requirements identified in SOW Attachment 3 (Configuration Requirements) as ‘Available’ or ‘Configurable’. The System shall not be limited to this set of attributes if the offered ...
	5.2.8.2 Contractor shall document its design for the System and provide a Configuration Requirements document for the System to demonstrate that it meets the: (i) configuration requirements set forth in SOW Attachment 3 (Configuration Requirements), i...
	5.2.8.3 The Contractor will configure a single purchasing workflow structure  that meets the County's requirements for each area (Requisition, Purchase Order, Receipts, Invoice, and Credit Memos) to be used Countywide. To assure the single workflow vi...
	5.2.8.4 Contractor shall provide a Configuration Management Plan which shall be submitted as required throughout the term of the Contract, as requested by the County. The Configuration Management Plan shall include, but not limited to the following:
	5.2.8.5 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Configuration Requirements and determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Contractor will submit a report indicating such for County's review and approval. If ...

	DELIVERABLE 11 – Configuration Requirements
	€ Configuration Requirements meeting the Requirements of SOW Attachment 3 (Configuration Requirements) For Release 1
	€ Configuration Requirements meeting the Requirements of SOW Attachment 3 (Configuration Requirements) for Release 2
	€ Configuration Requirements Document For Release 1*
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 11.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.9 TASK 12: Use of System Through SaaS Subscription Services
	5.2.10 Task 13: Interfaces and Integrations with Other Systems
	5.2.10.1 Using downloaded flat files from eCAPS, Contractor's proposed System shall interface with through uploading County data and transactions through an Extract, Transform and Load (ETL) process to and from eCAPS.
	5.2.10.2 Contractor’s System shall provide Single Sign On (SSO) capability based on SAML/OpenID Connect and single identity provider, for County Users using the County's Enterprise Identity & Access Management Directory (based upon Microsoft Azure Act...
	5.2.10.3 The System shall have or work with 3rd party configurable API (application program interface) application infrastructure to support extended integrations with eCAPS Financials and as well as external operational systems.
	5.2.10.4 The Contractor shall be responsible for completing the extract, transformation, and export\import, development, testing, and Deliverables to support the integrations with eCAPS Financials; and, the operational support systems that require and...
	5.2.10.5 The Contractor shall comply with the County’s integration and security protocols and standards for integration file types, network transmission, encryption, etc as indicated as ‘Available’ or ‘Configurable’ in SOW Attachment 2 (Technical Requ...
	5.2.10.6 The Contractor shall develop an Integration and Interface Plan and corresponding schedule, which shall be submitted to the County Project Manager for review and approval and shall include at a minimum:
	1. Contractors approach and methodology
	2. Analysis and Design
	▪ Review and assess County interfaces includes inbound\outboard type, data or transactional, batch or real time.
	▪ Complete the data mapping requirements for each integration Deliverable.  Includes data conversion requirements.
	▪ High-level integration design which shall include a listing of the in-scope integrations, requirements for a successful data and system integration, the expected behavior and features of the integration, and related systems.

	3. Development and Unit Test approach
	4. Testing and Reconciliation Processes
	5. Technical Requirements – Tools, application infrastructure, and resources.  Includes post interface file management, back up, and retention schedule
	6. Roles and responsibilities of County and Contractor in the design, development, and testing of integrations.
	7. A project schedule

	5.2.10.7 The System shall integrate with the County’s enterprise financial system eCAPS Financials.  Integration requirements include:
	1. Inventory Replenishment
	▪ System shall integrate with eCAPS Inventory Replenishment (IREP), and eCAPS Inventory.
	▪ System shall read the Inventory Replenishment table for items that have been selected for replenishment.
	▪ System shall replicate the Inventory Replenishment job that creates the draft requisition (RQN) and delivery order (DO) documents for warehouse replenishment.
	▪ Generate requisitions (RQN) documents for non-agreement inventory items
	▪ Generate delivery order (DO) documents for inventory items on agreement.
	▪ When generating procurement documents for replenishment, the System will identify inventory stock items based on a minimum but not limited to a combination of warehouse, commodity, stock suffix, and reference to a master agreement.

	2. Procurement of Stock Items
	▪ Ability for requisitions to reference inventory stock items and update stock items as requisitions are completed in the System.
	▪ Ability for purchase orders to reference inventory stock items and update stock items as requisitions are completed in the System.
	▪ Ability for receivers to reference inventory stock items and update stock items as requisitions are completed in the System.
	▪ Ability for payments to reference inventory stock items and update stock items as requisitions are completed in the System. Examples of inventory reference data from eCAPS Financials includes Department

	3. eCAPS Financials / Real-Time Encumbrances and Payments
	▪ Through the request to payment transactions in the System, the System shall integrate with eCAPS Financials for encumbrances and payments.
	▪ CEO Budget - Purchase Order Accrual and Commitment balances
	▪ Fiscal Year (FY), Budget Fiscal Year (BFY) and Accounting Period (Per)
	▪ Edit against multiple eCAPS budgets as needed
	▪ Encumbrances (purchase orders, delivery orders, contracts,  work orders, and other items as agreed to by the parties)
	▪ Payment requests after matching that reference current BFY or prior BFY encumbrances
	▪ Event types to support encumbrances and payment requests
	▪ Integrations to permit Payment status information to be imported back into the System
	▪ Special processing rules during period 13 (adjustment period after FY is soft closed)
	▪ Pre-Encumbrances are not in scope and no pre-encumbrance data will be sent to the System.

	4. Vendors
	▪ The System shall utilize vendor data from eCAPS Financials for all applicable procurement transactions.
	▪ The instances of new vendors created in the System shall be integrated to the master vendor table(s) in eCAPS Financials. The integration will be limited to 1:1 vendor/headquarters.
	▪ The instances of updates to vendors in the System shall be integrated to the master vendor table(s) in eCAPS Financials for all relevant data required in eCAPS Financials.

	5. File Attachments
	▪ If the County decides to change to a new document management system during the implementation the Contractor will assess the change for scope and timeline.

	6. Procurement Exchanges
	The System shall integrate with both proprietary and non-proprietary procurement business exchanges for procurement transactions including purchase orders, receivers, invoices, etc.  This integration is to be enabled by the County.
	7. DHS Supply Chain
	8. Single sign-on is not available for Supplier authentication between the Ivalua portal and the current eCAPS Vendor portal.
	9. Completion of the following integrations:
	10. The integration to the eCAPS solution assumes a non-commodity based integration model for general ledger processing. For the inventory transactions integration will be commodity based.
	11. Budget integration and storing in the iValua solution is not assumed in scope; the eCAPS solution will serve as the source of truth for budget validation.
	12. County and Contractor will handle additional integrations outside of the scope by Contractor pursuant to the change order process (for example, to make available data to support ad hoc and departmental reporting as part of the additional integrati...
	13. Further, the integration with the County’s financial system, eCAPS, shall be with the eCAPS version that is in place at the time of the Go Live for Release 2.


	DELIVERABLE 13 – Interfaces and Integrations with Other Systems
	€ Interface and Integration for Release 1*
	€ Interface and Integration for Release 2*
	€ Interface and Integration Plan with a detailed Project Schedule
	€ Training and Knowledge Transfer for County to perform the future Integrations for the System by No Later Than the End of Release 2
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 13. Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.11 Task 14: Reports
	5.2.11.1 Reporting Requirements
	1. The range of reporting from the System shall be comprehensive including all System functional areas as well as where those functional areas intersect and are related, transactions and transaction types, organizations, budgets, vendors; etc.
	2. Reporting from the System shall include security, workflow, and where applicable the correlation of meta data for configurations to System functional areas.
	3. The System must have robust reporting and dashboard capability and allow users to choose the granularity of the information presented. Data must be reportable and exportable in multiple formats based on user requirements, roles and privileges.
	4. The System must have robust, preferably universal search (including search of meta data and within documents when appropriate) capability across all modules and functions.
	5. The Contractor shall demonstrate the reporting, spend analytics, and dashboard capability of the System.
	6. Dashboards in the System shall be an in-built feature and configurable to make more effective use of data by providing better insights for users to make informed decisions.
	7. The System shall have in-built and sophisticated data analytics features including development of data taxonomies to classify data.
	8. Reporting from the System shall support use case categories including operational (cycle times), financial, performance matrixes, etc.
	9. The Contractor shall be responsible for completing the analysis, design, and development of the reports and dashboards from the functional use cases provided by the County within the approved design. The Contractor shall be responsible for completi...
	10. The generation of reports should not degrade application system performance provided they comply with best configuration practices.
	11. The System shall support the development of custom reports by County staff. County requires an approach from Contractor so that County may develop and implement additional reports outside the scope of Contractor.  The approach shall include the me...

	5.2.11.2 The Contractor shall develop a detailed Reports Plan that meets the requirements listed above and shall include at a minimum:
	1. Contractor's approach and methodology
	2. Discovery, Analysis and Design
	3. An outline of the Systems application infrastructure and tools for reports, dashboards, data repository, data export, etc.
	4. Review and assessment of County functional use cases for reports and dashboards.
	5. Develop the technical design supporting report and dashboard query logic i.e. tables, table joins, filters, conditional logic, and data mapping requirements.
	6. Development and Unit Test approach
	7. Testing and Reconciliation processes required to compare and verify the accuracy of report logic to report outputs.
	8.  List of all available reports
	9. The project schedule for report availability

	5.2.11.3 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Detailed Reports Plans and List of Available Reports and determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Contractor will submit a report indicating such for County...

	DELIVERABLE 14 – Reporting
	€ Detailed Reports Plan, List of Available Reports for Release 1, and Project Schedule*
	€  Detailed Reports Plan, List of Available Reports for Release 2, and Project Schedule*
	€ Detailed Reports Plan, List of Available Reports for Release 3, and Project Schedule
	€ Report for Release 3 Indicating Completion of Review for Any Needed Changes/Adjustments (If Changes/Adjustments are needed, it will be handled separately as part of the change order process.)
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 14.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.12 Task 15: Application Security Configuration
	5.2.12.1 The System shall provide application controls to prevent unauthorized use of the System, maintain System process controls, and log all transactions. In addition, the System shall provide security to limit availability to application functiona...
	5.2.12.2 Security Services
	5.2.12.3 Completed Security Configuration

	DELIVERABLE 15 – Security Configuration
	Application Security Configuration Document
	SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 15.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.

	5.3 Phase 3- Implementation/Deployment
	5.3.1 Task 16:  Data Migration – Conversion
	5.3.1.1 Convert and Archive Legacy Data
	1. Through the implementation of the new System, the County expects to archive legacy data not converted to the new System.   Data conversion into the new System will include at a minimum data that is required for the System to support ongoing busines...
	2. Open existing financial encumbrances in eCAPS will not be converted into the new System.
	3. As part of the implementation services, the Contractor shall load all or some of the historical legacy data to a data store hosted by the County.
	4. Contractor shall inform County’s Project Manager of any alternative approach for conversion of legacy data that could offer better outcomes, lower cost or lower risk to the County.
	5. Contractor will develop a plan for the data conversion that will include but not limited to the following:
	▪ Developing an inventory of all legacy data to be converted required by the System;
	▪ Performing a mapping of legacy system(s) data schemes to the new System schemes;
	▪ Developing multiple chart of account cross-walks including any extensions to the common elements in use by County agencies;
	▪ Establishing the vendor master file from multiple legacy data sources;
	▪ Developing an assessment of gaps between legacy data and System data requirements and formulating options to address those gaps.  Resolving any differences in data identification schemes; for example, consolidating purchasing document numbers or inv...
	▪ Developing conversion programs to automate the conversion of data;
	▪ Performing testing and implementing quality assurance protocols to ensure the data is converted accurately;
	▪ Where applicable developing a process to batch load legacy data into the System.

	6. Contractor shall take the lead to complete the tasks in the data conversion plan.  Where applicable the Contractor shall engage County SMEs for functional and technical input required to complete the data conversion Deliverables. Contractor will id...
	7. The Contractor shall successfully complete the data conversion and migration tests. The Contractor shall deliver to the County a “Data Migration Test Results Report”, within five (5) business days of successful completion of the data migration and ...
	8. The County is responsible for extraction, data cleansing, and quality assurance of data from County systems based on templates provided by the Contractor implementation team.  The number of mock cutovers is limited to three per release, unless the ...


	DELIVERABLE 16 – Data Conversion
	€ Data Conversion Plan
	€ Data Migration Test Results Report*
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 16.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.3.2 Task 17: Requirements Verification and Testing
	5.3.2.1 Requirements Verification for Releases 1 and 2
	1. Thoroughly test all System components throughout the testing phases of the project;
	2. Review “Available” and “Configurable” System Functional Requirements (SOW Attachment 1), Technical Requirements (SOW Attachment 2), and System Configuration Requirements (SOW Attachment 3)
	3. Conduct any indicated discovery or clarification sessions with County staff, subject matter experts, and County-specified key Users of the System to ensure a common understanding of the requirements.
	4. Request additional information, as appropriate, to ensure a thorough understanding of the requirements.

	5.3.2.2 System Testing for Releases 1 and 2
	1. Unit Testing
	2. System Testing
	3. Integration Testing
	4. Performance (load/stress) Testing
	5. Testing Services
	6. User Acceptance Testing
	▪ End to end testing of program increments;
	▪ Creating the acceptance testing environments;
	▪ Loading and revising, as needed, configuration values, converting data, and establishing user security in accordance with the “go-live” deployment plan;
	▪ The Contractor will provide assistance with sample test scripts to the County. Parties agree assistance would include County first providing use cases/scripts, and Contractor would then point to the detailed integrated system test scripts. County wo...
	▪ Ensuring that all integrations to other County Systems are connected to the testing environment for proper acceptance testing; The County is responsible is preparing their systems for these tests.
	▪ Submitting off-line jobs, if needed.  The setup, configuration, and run of batch jobs shall include and be complete with upstream/downstream dependencies implemented and in/out conditions defined;
	▪ Performing backups.  Backups shall include data, application, configuration, and interface files;
	▪ Refresh environment as required;
	▪ Tracking, resolving & reporting issues for those issues identified during testing;
	▪ Analyzing and explaining outcomes; and
	▪ Supporting the County in answering questions from testers as they arise.
	▪ The County will be responsible for coordinating, providing facilities for (e.g., computers, rooms, etc.) and delivering the acceptance testing with the County testers.
	▪ The County will provide a Test Lead. The Test Lead will help coordinate questions from County testers to the Contractor.
	▪ The Contractor will be responsible for support, triage, defect resolution, and coordinating the availability of the system with the County test lead.
	▪ Successful completion of this test will be required before the software can be approved for production use.


	5.3.2.3 System Requirements Verification and Testing Document (SRD)
	5.3.2.4 Partial Acceptance for Releases 1 and 2 and Final Acceptance Following Release 3
	5.3.2.5 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Testing Plans, Scripts, Processes, and Tools for Testing Services, and System Requirements Documents (SRDs), and determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Con...

	DELIVERABLE 17 – Requirements Verification & Testing
	€ Testing Plans, Scripts, Processes, and Tools for Testing Services identified in Section 5.3.2.2 for Release 1
	€ System Requirements Document (SRD) for Release 1*
	€ Partial Acceptance Report for Release 1
	€ Partial Acceptance Certification for Release 1
	€ Testing Plans, Scripts, Processes, and Tools for Testing Services identified in Section 5.3.2.2 for Release 2*
	€ System Requirements Document (SRD) for Release 2*
	€ Partial Acceptance Report for Release 2
	€ Partial Acceptance Certification for Release 2
	€ Report for Release 3 Indicating Completion of Review for Any Needed Changes/Adjustments (If Changes/Adjustments are needed, it will be handled separately as part of the change order process.)
	€ Final Acceptance Report
	€ Final Acceptance Certification
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 17.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.3.3 TASK 18: TRAINING
	5.3.3.1 Training Plan
	1. Project team training, including recording such trainings for up to forty (40) project team members, which may be further adjusted if its reasonable to do so;
	2. Administrator training that includes technical, security, and configurations training to support development, implementation, production and to support ongoing operations;
	3. End-User training to support implementation, new update rollouts and ongoing needs;
	4. Knowledge transfer to a core group of functional, administrative, programming, security, and other technical and operations personnel to support independent operations capability before conclusion of the Contractor’s post-implementation support res...

	5.3.3.2 Project Team Training
	1. System architecture, navigation and functionality;
	2. Configurable components and System options;
	3. Development components, including secure development techniques;
	4. Online and batch operations;
	5. Security and System options available;
	6. Application data model (through Ivalua);
	7. End-User Training

	5.3.3.3 End User Training
	1. Provide classroom materials to support the classroom training effort that have been customized to address specific software configuration and customizations made as part of the project;
	2. Develop all training materials, including training guides, training videos, quick reference guides, speaker notes, user materials and course curricula (including training objectives and outcomes);
	3. Work with assigned County staff to incorporate County policy, procedure, and specific personnel roles and responsibilities into the training materials;
	4. Provide a stable, tested training environment capable of testing all required functionality, which is pre-loaded with representative converted reference and historical County data that can become a starting point for creating training materials (in...
	5. Provide setup of training accounts, back up, restore, and troubleshooting assistance in the training environment as materials are prepared and customized and as end-user training proceeds;
	6. Building report development skill sets.
	8. In support of the establishment of appropriately trained County personnel across the agencies on the software tools and methodologies to address future reporting needs of the County, the Contractor shall provide the following services as part of it...
	▪ Reporting Tools Training Strategy development;
	▪ Needs assessment of agencies personnel;
	▪ Curriculum development and training content development;
	▪ Training execution;
	▪ Knowledge transfer assessment


	5.3.3.4 Ivalua Guides
	5.3.3.5 Training Evaluation
	5.3.3.6 County Trainer Training
	5.3.3.7 Technical Personnel Training
	1. Technical support;
	2. Application tools for monitoring and performance tuning of application events and data import/export;
	3. Troubleshooting;
	4. Procedures for handling software upgrades and maintenance an all other tasks necessary to provide support for the System;
	5. All components of the operating environment that are required of the County;
	6. Use of the Contractor’s development tools and application administration tools.

	5.3.3.8 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Training Plans, Training Materials and Training, Training Evaluation and Evaluation Results, and determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Contractor will sub...

	DELIVERABLE 18 – Training
	€ Training Plan for Release 1
	€ Training Materials for Release 1
	€ Training, Training Evaluation and Evaluation Results For Release 1*
	€ Training Plan for Release 2
	€ Training Materials for Release 2
	€ Training, Training Evaluation and Evaluation Results For Release 2*
	€ Report for Release 3 Indicating Completion of Review for Any Needed Changes/Adjustments (If Changes/Adjustments are needed, it will be handled separately as part of the change order process.)
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 18.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.3.4 Task 19: Documentation
	5.3.4.1 User Manual and Documentation for Releases 1 and 2
	1. Functional Help Desk contact information;
	2. Technical Help Desk contact information;
	3. Transaction Reference Guides, which include step-by-step procedures for executing each business process.

	5.3.4.2 Operations Manual and Support Documentation for Releases 1 and 2
	5.3.4.3 Technical Documentation
	5.3.4.4 Updated Design Document s
	5.3.4.5 Workstation Installation Procedures and Automated Installation Tools
	5.3.4.6 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior User Manual and Documentations, Operations Manual and Support Documentations, Technical Documentation, and Documentation of All Customizations/Configurations and Parameters, to determine if any ...

	DELIVERABLE 19 – Documentation
	€ User Manual and Documentation For Release 1
	€ Operations Manual and Support Documentation for Release 1
	€ User Manual and Documentation For Release 2
	€ Operations Manual and Support Documentation for Release 2*
	€ Fiscal Year End Close Step by Step Procedures
	€ New Fiscal Year Opening Step by Step Procedures
	€ Report for Release 3 Indicating Completion of Review for Any Needed Changes/Adjustments (If Changes/Adjustments are needed, it will be handled separately as part of the change order process.)
	€ Technical Documentation due at Release 1
	€ Documentation of All Customizations/Configurations and Parameters for Release 1
	€ Documentation of All Customizations/Configurations and Parameters for Release 2
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 19.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.3.5 Task 20: Implementation/Production- Planning and Preparation
	5.3.5.1 Deployment Cut-Over (Production) Plan for Releases 1 and 2
	1. Final data conversion activities;
	2. Activation of integration interfaces;
	3. Activation of batch cycle processes;
	4. Technical preparation and System changeover activities;
	5. Resolution of all identified security issues;
	6. Development of a cut-over activities checklist;
	7. Deployment schedule.

	5.3.5.2 Contingency Plan for Releases 1 and 2
	5.3.5.3 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Deployment Cut Over Plans and Contingency Plans, to determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Contractor will submit a report indicating such for County's rev...

	DELIVERABLE 20 – Planning and Preparation
	€ Deployment Cut Over Plan for Release 1
	€ Contingency Plan for Release 1
	€ Deployment Cut Over Plan for Release 2
	€ Contingency Plan for Release 2
	€ Report for Release 3 Indicating Completion of Review for Any Needed Changes/Adjustments (If Changes/Adjustments are needed, it will be handled separately as part of the change order process.)
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 20.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.

	5.4 Phase 4 - Post-Implementation Support for Releases 1 and 2 (Cut-Over)
	5.4.1 Task 21: Production Transfer
	5.4.1.1 The Contractor shall present production procedures to the County Project Manager for each Release.
	5.4.1.2 The Contractor shall turn over all System components in a Systematic fashion into the production environment;
	5.4.1.3 The Contractor shall turn over all integration System components in a systematic fashion into the production environment;
	5.4.1.4 The Contractor shall ensure that all components and modules of the production environment can be operated online or run to completion as appropriate, and that all modules, job streams (or scripts) are properly documented according to agreed-up...
	5.4.1.5 A single "go-live" and support period will occur for each release, Release 1 and Release 2. The County will be responsible for ensuring all data migrations, users, and data are loaded in the System for each "go-live".
	5.4.1.6 At the completion of Release 1, the County will have ISD and other designated departments identified by County, deployed. Release 2 will be for remaining functionality not yet deployed and all in scope LA County Departments. The County will be...

	DELIVERABLE 21 – Production Transfer
	€ System Turnover Procedures Presentation for Release 1*
	€ System Turnover Procedures Presentation for Release 2*
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 21.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.4.2 Task 22: Post Implementation Support and Activities for Releases 1, 2 and 3 (Hypercare)
	5.4.2.1 The Contractor shall provide post-implementation support that shall include the following:
	5.4.2.2 The Contractor shall have adequate personnel to be responsible for addressing end user support of all production System issues during the 60 day period of hypercare for Partial Acceptance and Final Acceptance for Release 1, Release 2 and Relea...
	5.4.2.3 Contactor shall provide support for one month at one business analyst during the County’s first Financial Year-End close for the System, as requested by the County. As part of this work, Contactor shall provide on the spot support during the C...
	5.4.2.4 The Contractor shall assess the performance of the System throughout the post-implementation support period. If required, the assessments shall result in specific recommendations to improve performance as needed and the Contractor shall execut...
	5.4.2.5 The Contractor shall manage the deployment of any updates or patches (if any) during the Post-Implementation Support period.
	5.4.2.6 The Contractor shall provide monthly status reports of the support activities.
	5.4.2.7 Additionally, the Contractor shall document and provide the County with the procedures for 1) fiscal year-end close and 2) subsequent opening of the new fiscal year, by no later than Go-Live for Release 2. This document shall describe, in proc...
	5.4.2.8 The Contractor shall develop and provide Post-Implementation Support Guide (or presentation) and corresponding documentation to the County Project Manager.

	DELIVERABLE 22 – Post-Implementation Support
	Support Activity Status Report (twice a month) for Release 1
	€ Support Activity Status Report (twice a month) for Release 2
	€ Support Activity Status Report (twice a month) for Release 3
	€ Post-Implementation Support Guide and Documentation for Release 1
	€ Post-Implementation Support Guide and Documentation for Release 2
	€ Post-Implementation Support Guide and Documentation for Release 3
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 22.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.

	5.5 Phase 5 - Ongoing Operations
	5.5.1 Task 23: Knowledge Transfer
	DELIVERABLE 23 – Knowledge Transfer
	€ Knowledge Transfer Plan for Release 1
	€ Knowledge Transfer Plan for Release 2
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 23.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.5.2 Task 24: System Maintenance Plan
	Contractor will deliver System Maintenance as part of Subscription Services as specified in Exhibit J.
	5.5.3 Task 25: Outgoing Transition - Transition Services
	5.5.3.1 Complete a thorough assessment of the status and priority of all:
	1. Current work activities;
	2. Risks and issues;
	3. Deliverables;
	4. Configuration;
	5. Integrations;
	6. Development items;
	7. Environments;
	8. Staffing.

	5.5.3.2 Develop, in cooperation with the County, the Transition Plan that will guide the transfer of responsibilities and work activities. The Transition Plan will include, at a minimum:
	1. Schedule;
	2. Milestones;
	3. Costs Impacts;
	4. Work Activities;
	5. Assigned Personnel;
	6. Completion Criteria for all Items in the Assessment.


	DELIVERABLE 25 – Transition Services
	€ Transition Services Plan
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 25.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.5.4 Task 26: Contract Discrepancy Report


	6.0 OPTIONAL WORK AND/OR OPTIONAL 90-DAYS EXTENSION OF IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES Optional Work.
	7.0 SUMMARY OF DELIVERABLES

	e-Procurement Contract 7.8.2025.pdf
	1.0 APPLICABLE DOCUMENTS
	2.0 DEFINITIONS
	2.1 Standard Definitions:
	2.1.1 The headings herein contained are for convenience and reference only and are not intended to define the scope of any provision thereof. The following words as used herein shall be construed to have the following meaning, unless otherwise apparen...
	2.1.1.1 Acceptance (Accepted): The County’s written approval of any tasks, subtasks, Deliverables, and related milestones for implementing the System, and as may be otherwise contained in the applicable Statement of Works (if applicable).  For the Sys...
	2.1.1.2 Acceptance Criteria: As defined in Paragraph 9.2.1 (Acceptance Criteria) of this Contract.
	2.1.1.3 Authorized User: (a) a natural person, whether an employee, consultant or third-party contractor of County accessing the System on County’s behalf pursuant to the terms of this Contract; and (b) a natural person accessing the “supplier portal”...
	2.1.1.4 Board of Supervisors (Board): The Board of Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles acting as governing body.
	2.1.1.5 Business Process Automation (BPA): The technology-enabled automation of both simple and complex business processes as listed in Attachment 1 (Functional Requirements of Exhibit A (Statement of Work)).
	2.1.1.6 Change Order: For any change requested by County which requires Contractor to incur any additional costs or expenses and County chooses to use Pool Dollars for such change.
	2.1.1.7 Confidential Information: Any confidential, trade secret, and/or proprietary information disclosed, whether orally or in writing, by one party to the other pursuant to this Contract that is designated as “confidential” or that a person exercis...
	2.1.1.8 Contract: This agreement executed between County and Contractor. Included are all supplemental agreements amending or extending the work to be performed.  The Contract sets forth the terms and conditions for the issuance and performance of all...
	2.1.1.9 Contractor: The person or persons, sole proprietor, partnership, joint venture, corporation or other legal entity who has entered into an agreement with the County to perform or execute the work and implement, operate, maintain and support the...
	2.1.1.10 Contractor Project Manager:  The person designated by the Contractor to administer the Contract operations under this Contract.
	2.1.1.11 County Contract Project Monitor:  Person with responsibility to oversee the day to day activities of this Contract.  Responsibility for inspections of any and all tasks, deliverables, goods, services and other work provided by the Contractor.
	2.1.1.12 County Fiscal Manual: Represents the policies and procedures that guide the processing, recording, and reporting of financial information by County departments.
	2.1.1.13 County Information: All Data and Information belonging to the County, as defined in Exhibit I (Information Security and Privacy Requirements Exhibit) including Submitted Data.
	2.1.1.14 County's Mitigation Acts: As defined in Paragraph 8.23.2.3 of this Contract.
	2.1.1.15 County Project Director:  Person designated by County with authority for County on contractual or administrative matters relating to this Contract that cannot be resolved by the County’s Project Manager.
	2.1.1.16 County Project Manager: Person designated by County’s Project Director to manage the operations under this Contract.
	2.1.1.17 County Project Team: County staff assigned to or associated with the project.
	2.1.1.18 Data Analytics:  Data analytics are the results of a process of inspecting, cleaning, transforming, and modeling data with the goal of discovering useful information, suggesting conclusions, and supporting decision-making.
	2.1.1.19 Day(s):  Calendar day(s) unless otherwise specified.
	2.1.1.20 Development:  The process of creating a software program or a set of programs to perform the different tasks that a business requires.
	2.1.1.21 Deliverables: Whether singular or plural, the software, items and/or services provided or to be provided by Contractor under this Contract identified as a deliverable, including all Deliverable(s) in Exhibit A (Statement of Work).
	2.1.1.22 Designated Test: As defined in Paragraph 9.3.3 (Failed Testing) of this Contract.
	2.1.1.23 Disabling Device(s): As defined in Paragraph 9.1.2.2 (Revisions During Term) of this Contract.
	2.1.1.24 Displaced/Renamed Product: As defined in Paragraph 4.1 of this Contract.
	2.1.1.25 Documentation: Contractor published technical documents relating to the operation and use of the System including the then-current online manuals, help guides, and release notes made available to County within the System or via the Contractor...
	2.1.1.26 Downtime: As defined in Exhibit J (Subscription Services; Maintenance and Support Services), the period of time when the eProcurement System or any eProcurement System component is unavailable, including Unscheduled Downtime and Scheduled Dow...
	2.1.1.27 eCAPS: Electronic Countywide Accounting and Purchasing Systems (eCAPS) also referred to as the “County’s enterprise financial system”.  A web-based, fully integrated enterprise resource (ERP) system that allows for an electronic means to subm...
	2.1.1.28 Effective Date: The date first set forth in the preamble to the Contract, which cannot be earlier than the date on which this Contract has been approved by the Board of Supervisors.
	2.1.1.29 e-Procurement System or System or Ivalua SaaS Solution:  Contractor's proprietary software-as-a-service application provided to County for its use pursuant to this Contract.
	2.1.1.30 Final Acceptance: As defined in Paragraph 9.3.2 (Final Acceptance) of this Contract, and as further set forth in Exhibit A (Statement of Work).
	2.1.1.31 Fiscal Year:  The twelve (12) month period beginning July 1st and ending the following June 30th.
	2.1.1.32 Force Majeure Event(s): As defined in Paragraph 8.20 (Force Majeure) of this Contract.
	2.1.1.33 Holdback Amount: Ten percent (10%) withhold of the payment associated with the Contractor’s invoices for Deliverables under Exhibit A (Statement of Work) and Exhibit B (Pricing Schedule) that will be released following Final Acceptance.  Hold...
	2.1.1.34 Hosted Environment: Hardware, hosted network, and hosted operating software to be supplied by Contractor as a part of its obligation to perform Hosting Services.  The Hosted Environment includes the Hosted Environment for Production Use and a...
	2.1.1.35 Hosted Managed Service(s): An information technology (IT) services provider that manages and assumes responsibility for providing a defined set of services including off-premise hosting of the necessary technology infrastructure and managemen...
	2.1.1.36 Hosting Services: Services provided by the Contractor to host the System in the Hosted Environment at its facilities, as set forth in this Contract including Exhibit J-1 (Maintenance Hours and Details Per Service Level Purchased).
	2.1.1.37 Indemnified Items: As defined in Paragraph 8.23.2.1 of this Contract.
	2.1.1.38 Infringement Claim(s): As defined in Paragraph 8.23.2.1 of this Contract.
	2.1.1.39 Integration:  Sharing of data and a business process or workflow and, where possible, allowing for near real-time processing of data or the elimination of duplicate data residing on multiple systems.
	2.1.1.40 Interface: Broadly as multiple systems sharing data regardless of the batch or real-time nature of the data exchange.
	2.1.1.41 Lean: Methodology for designing processes that produce increased value with fewer resources required.
	2.1.1.42 Maintenance and Support Services: Contractor’s maintenance and support services provided to County as part of Subscription Services pursuant to this Contract and pursuant to the Exhibit J (Subscription Services; Maintenance and Support Servic...
	2.1.1.43 License: As defined in Paragraph 9.1.1.1 of this Contract.
	2.1.1.44 Maximum Contract Sum: As defined in Paragraph 5.1.2 of this Contract.
	2.1.1.45 Milestone: An important point in the progress or development of the project.
	2.1.1.46 Option: As defined in Paragraph 4.2 of this Contract.
	2.1.1.47 Optional Work: Additional professional services, if any, which may be provided by Contractor to County upon County’s request and approval in accordance with Paragraph 3.4 (Optional Work).
	2.1.1.48 Partial Acceptance: As defined in Paragraph 9.3.2 (Partial and Final Acceptance) of this Contract for Release 1 and Release 2 of the System, and as further set forth in Exhibit A (Statement of Work).
	2.1.1.49 Platform: A group of technologies that are used as a base upon which other applications, processes or technologies are developed.
	2.1.1.50 Pool Dollars: Absent an Amendment in accordance with Paragraph 8.1 (Changes to Contract), the maximum amount allocated under this Contract for the provision of Optional Work approved by County in accordance with the terms of this Contract.
	2.1.1.51 Production or Production Use: The actual use of the System or any component thereof in the Hosted Environment to process actual live data in County’s day-to-day operations.
	2.1.1.52 Professional Services: Services, including but not limited to, implementation, configuration, consulting services, training and/or similar services, which Contractor may provide upon County’s request  in accordance with a Statement of Work.
	2.1.1.53 Program Management:  Processes and activities to manage a group of related projects in a coordinated manner to obtain benefits and control not available from managing them individually. It emphasizes the coordinating and prioritizing of resou...
	2.1.1.54 Project Management:  Processes and activities for initiating, planning, executing, controlling, and work of a team to achieve specific goals and meet specific success criteria.
	2.1.1.55 Purchasing Agent:  Director of ISD or the Director’s authorized representative(s).
	2.1.1.56 Release 1: As defined in Exhibit A (Statement of Work), Contractor's completion of the work for the required System functionality needed for this release, along with ISD and other designated LA County departments identified by County, deploye...
	2.1.1.57 Release 2: As defined in Exhibit A (Statement of Work), Contractor's completion of the work to deploy the remaining System functionality and all in scope LA County departments.
	2.1.1.58 Remedial Acts: As defined in Paragraph 8.23.2.2 of this Contract.
	2.1.1.59 Required Insurance: As defined in Paragraph 8.24.1 of this Contract.
	2.1.1.60 Service(s): Collectively, and as applicable, all work required from the Contractor as set forth in Exhibit A (Statement of Work), and otherwise in this Contract, including providing access for the System or Ivalua SaaS Solution, Optional Work...
	2.1.1.61 Service Credits: Any form of discount or credit for Contractor's failure to timely correct Deficiencies or for Unscheduled Downtime, as specified in Exhibit J (Subscription Services; Maintenance and Support Services).
	2.1.1.62 Software-as-a-Service (Saas): A software licensing and delivery model in which software is licensed on a subscription basis and is vendor hosted. This could be in a single or multi-tenant setting.
	2.1.1.63 Statement of Work: The directions, provisions, and requirements provided herein and special provisions pertaining to the method, frequency, manner and place of performing the work, as set forth in Exhibit A (Statement of Work).
	2.1.1.64 Subcontract: An agreement by the Contractor to employ a Subcontractor to provide services to fulfill this Contract.
	2.1.1.65 Subcontractor: Any individual, person or persons, sole proprietor, firm, partnership, joint venture, corporation, or other legal entity furnishing supplies, services of any nature, equipment, and/or materials to Contractor in furtherance of C...
	2.1.1.66 Submitted Data: any electronic content, data, materials and information submitted by or on behalf of County to the System. Submitted Data may contain Personal Data which may be subject to laws restricting collection, use, processing and free ...
	2.1.1.67 Subscription Fees: The fees County has agreed to pay for Subscription Services  in the amounts as set forth in Exhibit B (Pricing Schedule).
	2.1.1.68 Subscription Services: The Ivalua SaaS Solution services provided to County for the Subscription Fees, which includes but is not limited to Maintenance and Support Services, Hosting Services, Platinum Support and Helpdesk, correction of Defec...
	2.1.1.69 System Availability: The System operating as required when required during the term of the Contract, as set forth in Exhibit J (Subscription Services- Maintenance and Support Services.
	2.1.1.70 System Performance Requirements: The accuracy, efficiency, responsiveness and speed of the System, as set forth in Section 9.11.
	2.1.1.71 Term: As defined in Paragraph 4.1 of this Contract.
	2.1.1.72 Transition Period: As defined in Paragraph 9.12 (Termination Transition Services) of this Contract.
	2.1.1.73 Transition Services: As defined in Paragraph 9.12 (Termination Transition Services) of this Contract.
	2.1.1.74 Third Party Product: All software and content licensed, leased or otherwise obtained by Contractor from a third-party, and used with the System or used for the performance of the Services, as set in Exhibit H (Third Party Products).
	2.1.1.75 Trusted Systems: A system that is relied upon to a specified extent to enforce a specified security policy.
	2.1.1.76 Upgrades: As defined in Exhibit J-2.
	2.1.1.77 Vendor Self Service Portal (VSS): Vendor Self Service Portal, which offers vendor access to financial transactions such as purchase orders, scheduled payments, accessing solicitations (https://lacovss.lacounty.gov/webapp/VSSPSRV11/AltSelfServ...
	2.1.1.78 Versions: The unique states of software as it is developed and released that is accompanied by a change in the reference to the System in the number to the left of the period in the version numbering format X.XX.
	2.1.1.79 WebVen:  The County’s vendor registration System https://camisvr.co.la.ca.us/webven/.



	3.0 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES
	4.0 TERM OF CONTRACT
	5.0 CONTRACT SUM
	5.1 Maximum Contract Sum
	5.1.1 Contractor shall provide all tasks, Deliverables, goods, services and other work specified under this Contract at rates not exceeding the rates and prices identified in Exhibit B (Pricing Schedule).
	5.1.2 The maximum Contract sum shall be the total monetary amount payable by County to Contractor for supplying all the Services during the term of this Contract ("Maximum Contract Sum"). If County does not Accept Deliverables under and in accordance ...
	5.1.3 Contractor’s rates set forth in Exhibit B (Pricing Schedule) shall remain firm and fixed and may not be increased during the Term of this Contract, including, without limitation, any Option extensions as set forth in Paragraph 4.0 (Term of Contr...

	5.2 Written Approval for Reimbursement
	5.3 Notification of 75% of Maximum Contract Sum
	5.4 No Payment for Services Provided Following Expiration- Termination of Contract
	5.5 Invoices and Payments
	5.5.1 The Contractor shall invoice the County only for providing the tasks, Deliverables, goods, services, and other work specified in Exhibit A (Statement of Work), the applicable Change Order, and elsewhere hereunder. The Contractor shall prepare in...
	5.5.2 The Contractor’s invoices shall be priced in accordance with Exhibit B (Pricing Schedule).
	5.5.3 The Contractor’s invoices shall contain the information set forth in Exhibit A (Statement of Work) describing the tasks, deliverables, goods, services, work hours, or applicable Change Order for other work for which payment is claimed.  The Cont...
	5.5.4 The Contractor shall submit invoices to the County by no later then the 15th calendar day of the month following the month that the fees are properly incurred and fees will be invoiced as provided for in Exhibit B (Pricing Schedule).
	5.5.5 County will pay undisputed invoices within sixty (60) days of receipt of the invoices.
	5.5.6 So long as professional services and SaaS services remain untaxable in California and invoicing are sent to the County in California, all costs included in Exhibit B (Pricing Schedule) hereunder are inclusive of all local, state, federal or fore...
	5.5.7 All invoices under this Contract shall be submitted via email to the following address:
	5.5.8 County Approval of Invoices

	5.6 Holdbacks
	5.7 Default Method of Payment: Direct Deposit or Electronic Funds Transfer
	5.7.1 The County, at its sole discretion, has determined that the most efficient and secure default form of payment for goods and/or services provided under an agreement/ contract with the County shall be Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) or direct depo...
	5.7.2 The Contractor shall submit a direct deposit authorization request via the website https://directdeposit.lacounty.gov with banking and vendor information, and any other information that the A-C determines is reasonably necessary to process the p...
	5.7.3 Any provision of law, grant, or funding agreement requiring a specific form or method of payment other than EFT or direct deposit shall supersede this requirement with respect to those payments.
	5.7.4 At any time during the duration of the Contract, a Contractor may submit a written request for an exemption to this requirement.  Such request must be based on specific legal, business or operational needs and explain why the payment method desi...


	6.0 ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT - COUNTY
	6.1 County Administration
	6.2 County’s Project Director
	6.2.1 The County’s Project Director is authorized to perform any or all the roles described herein:
	6.2.1.1 Coordinating with Contractor and ensuring Contractor’s performance of the Contract; however, in no event shall Contractor’s obligation to fully satisfy all of the requirements of this Contract be relieved, excused or limited thereby; and
	6.2.1.2 Upon request of the Contractor, providing direction to the Contractor, as appropriate in areas relating to County policy, information requirements, and procedural requirements; however, in no event, shall Contractor’s obligation to fully satis...


	6.3 County’s Project Manager
	6.3.1 The County’s Project Manager is authorized to perform any or all the roles described herein:
	6.3.1.1 Meeting with the Contractor’s Project Manager on a regular basis; and
	6.3.1.2 Inspecting any and all tasks, deliverables, goods, services, or other work provided by or on behalf of the Contractor; however, in no event shall Contractor’s obligation to fully satisfy all of the requirements of this Contract be relieved, ex...

	6.3.2 The County’s Project Manager is not authorized to make any changes in any of the terms and conditions of this Contract and is not authorized to further obligate County in any respect whatsoever.

	6.4 County’s Contract Project Monitor
	6.4.1 The County’s Project Monitor is authorized to oversee the day-to-day administration of this Contract; however, in no event shall Contractor’s obligation to fully satisfy all of the requirements of this Contract be relieved, excused or limited th...


	7.0 ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT - CONTRACTOR
	7.1 Contractor Administration
	7.2 Contractor’s Project Manager
	7.2.1 The Contractor’s Project Manager is designated in Exhibit E (Contractor’s Administration).  The Contractor shall notify the County in writing of any change in the name or address of the Contractor’s Project Manager.
	7.2.2 The Contractor’s Project Manager shall be responsible for the Contractor’s day-to-day activities as related to this Contract and shall meet and coordinate with County’s Project Manager and County’s Contract Project Monitor on a regular basis.

	7.3 Approval of Contractor’s Staff
	7.4 Contractor’s Staff Identification
	7.4.1 Contractor is responsible to ensure that employees have obtained a County ID badge before they are assigned to work in a County facility.  Contractor personnel may be asked by a County representative to leave a County facility if they do not hav...
	7.4.2 Contractor shall notify the County within one business day when staff is terminated from working under this Contract.  Contractor shall retrieve and return an employee’s County ID badge to the County by no later than five (5) calendar days after...
	7.4.3 If County reasonably requests the removal of Contractor’s staff, Contractor shall retrieve and return an employee’s County ID badge to the County by no later than five (5) calendar days after the employee has been removed from working on the Cou...

	7.5 Background and Security Investigations
	7.5.1 Each of Contractor’s staff performing implementation services under this Contract, who is in a designated sensitive position, as determined by County in County's sole discretion, shall undergo and pass a background investigation.  Such backgroun...
	7.5.2 If a member of the Contractor’s staff does not pass the background investigation, County may request that the member of Contractor’s staff be removed immediately from performing services under the Contract.  Contractor shall comply with County’s...
	7.5.3 County, in its sole discretion, may immediately deny or terminate facility access to any member of Contractor’s staff that does not pass such investigation to the satisfaction of the County or whose background or conduct is incompatible with Cou...
	7.5.4 Disqualification of any member of Contractor’s staff pursuant to this Paragraph 7.5 shall not relieve Contractor of its obligation to complete all work in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract.
	7.5.5 These terms will also apply to Subcontractors of Contractor who are performing implementation services under this Contract.

	7.6 Confidentiality
	7.6.1 Contractor shall maintain the confidentiality of all County records and information in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, directives, guidelines, policies and procedures relating to conf...
	7.6.2 Contractor shall defend County, its officers, employees, and agents, from and against any and all claims, demands, suits or proceedings brought against the County, its officers, employees and agents by a third party (“Claim”) arising from, conne...
	7.6.3 Contractor shall inform all of its officers, employees, agents and subcontractors providing services hereunder of the confidentiality provisions of this Contract.
	7.6.4 County Confidentiality Obligations. The County agrees not to disclose the Contractor’s Confidential Information, except to its employees,  contractors, consultants, advisors, auditors, attorneys, service providers,  who have a need to know the i...


	8.0 STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	8.1 Changes to Contract
	8.1.1 Amendments
	8.1.2 Change Orders

	8.2 Assignment and Delegation/Mergers or Acquisitions
	8.2.1 Except as set forth herein, this Agreement may not be assigned by either Party in whole or part without the prior written consent of the other Party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.
	8.2.2 The Contractor shall notify the County of any pending acquisitions/mergers of its company unless otherwise legally prohibited from doing so. If the Contractor is restricted from legally notifying the County of pending acquisitions/mergers, then ...
	8.2.3 The Contractor shall not assign its rights or delegate its duties under this Contract, or both, whether in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of County, in its discretion, and any attempted assignment or delegation without such ...
	8.2.4 Shareholders, partners, members, or other equity holders of Contractor may transfer, sell, exchange, assign, or divest themselves of any interest they may have therein.  However, in the event any such sale, transfer, exchange, assignment, or div...
	8.2.5 Except as provided under the Contract, any assumption, assignment, delegation, or takeover of any of the Contractor’s duties, responsibilities, obligations, or performance of same by any person or entity other than the Contractor, whether throug...

	8.3 Authorization Warranty
	8.4 Budget Reductions
	8.5 Complaints Unrelated to Subscription Services and Project Implementation Deliverables
	8.5.1 The Contractor shall develop, maintain and operate procedures for receiving, investigating and responding to complaints unrelated to Subscription Services and Project Implementation deliverables.
	8.5.2 Complaint Procedures

	8.6 Compliance with Applicable Law
	8.6.1 In the performance of this Contract, Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, and all provisions required thereby that are applicable to the provision of the System and related services to b...
	8.6.2 Contractor shall defend County, its officers, employees, and agents, from and against any and all claims, demands, suits or proceedings against the County by a third party connected with, or related to any failure by Contractor, its officers, em...

	8.7 Compliance with Civil Rights Laws
	8.7.1 The Contractor hereby assures that it will comply with Subchapter VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 USC Sections 2000 (e) (1) through 2000 (e) (17), to the end that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, sex, religion, ances...

	8.8 Compliance with the County’s Jury Service Program
	8.8.1 Jury Service Program:
	8.8.2 Written Employee Jury Service Policy.

	8.9 Conflict of Interest
	8.9.1 No County employee whose position with the County enables such employee to influence the award of this Contract or any competing Contract, and no spouse or economic dependent of such employee, shall be employed in any capacity by the Contractor ...
	8.9.2 The Contractor shall comply with all conflict-of-interest laws, ordinances, and regulations now in effect or hereafter to be enacted during the Term of this Contract.  The Contractor warrants that it is not now aware of any facts that create a c...

	8.10 Consideration of Hiring County Employees Targeted for Layoff or Re-Employment List
	8.11 Consideration of Hiring GAIN/START Participants
	Should the Contractor require additional or replacement personnel after the effective date of this Contract, the Contractor will give consideration for any such employment openings to participants in the County‘s Department of Public Social Services G...
	In the event that both laid-off County employees and GAIN/START participants are available for hiring, County employees must be given first priority.
	8.12 Contractor Responsibility and Debarment
	8.12.1 Responsible Contractor
	8.12.2 Chapter 2.202 of the County Code
	8.12.3 Non-responsible Contractor
	8.12.4 Contractor Hearing Board
	8.12.4.1 If there is evidence that the Contractor may be subject to debarment, the Department will notify the Contractor in writing of the evidence which is the basis for the proposed debarment and will advise the Contractor of the scheduled date for ...
	8.12.4.2 The Contractor Hearing Board will conduct a hearing where evidence on the proposed debarment is presented.  The Contractor and/or the Contractor’s representative shall be given an opportunity to submit evidence at that hearing.  After the hea...
	8.12.4.3 After consideration of any objections, or if no objections are submitted, a record of the hearing, the proposed decision, and any other recommendation of the Contractor Hearing Board shall be presented to the Board of Supervisors.  The Board ...
	8.12.4.4 If a Contractor has been debarred for a period longer than five (5) years, that Contractor may after the debarment has been in effect for at least five (5) years, submit a written request for review of the debarment determination to reduce th...
	8.12.4.5 The Contractor Hearing Board will consider a request for review of a debarment determination only where 1) the Contractor has been debarred for a period longer than five (5) years; 2) the debarment has been in effect for at least five (5) yea...
	8.12.4.6 The Contractor Hearing Board’s proposed decision shall contain a recommendation on the request to reduce the period of debarment or terminate the debarment.  The Contractor Hearing Board shall present its proposed decision and recommendation ...

	8.12.5 Subcontractors of Contractor

	8.13 Contractor’s Acknowledgement and Notice to its Employees of the Safely Surrendered Baby Law
	8.14 Contractor’s Warranty of Adherence to County’s Child Support Compliance Program
	8.14.1 The Contractor acknowledges that the County has established a goal of ensuring that all individuals who benefit financially from the County through contracts are in compliance with their court-ordered child, family and spousal support obligatio...
	8.14.2 As required by the County’s Child Support Compliance Program (County Code Chapter 2.200) and without limiting the Contractor’s duty under this Contract to comply with all applicable provisions of law, the Contractor warrants that it is now in c...

	8.15 County’s Quality Assurance Plan
	8.16 Damage to County Facilities, Buildings or Grounds
	8.16.1 The Contractor shall repair, or cause to be repaired, at its own cost, any and all damage to County facilities, buildings, or grounds caused by the Contractor or employees or agents of the Contractor.  Such repairs shall be made immediately aft...
	8.16.2 If the Contractor fails to make timely repairs, County may make any necessary repairs.  All costs incurred by County, as determined by County, for such repairs shall be repaid by the Contractor by cash payment upon demand.

	8.17 Employment Eligibility Verification
	8.17.1 The Contractor warrants that it fully complies with all Federal and State statutes and regulations regarding the employment of aliens and others and that all its employees performing work under this Contract meet the citizenship or alien status...
	8.17.2 The Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless, the County, its agents, officers, and employees from employer sanctions and any other liability which may be assessed against the Contractor or the County or both in connection with any...

	8.18 Counterparts and Electronic Signatures and Representations
	8.19 Fair Labor Standards
	8.20 Force Majeure
	8.20.1 Neither party shall be liable for such party's failure to perform its obligations under and in accordance with this Contract, if such failure arises out of fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, other natural occurrences, strikes, l...
	8.20.2 Notwithstanding the foregoing, a default by a Subcontractor of Contractor shall not constitute a Force Majeure Event, unless such default arises out of causes beyond the control of both Contractor and such Subcontractor, and without any fault o...
	8.20.3 Notwithstanding the foregoing, COVID-19 is excluded as a Force Majeure Event.
	8.20.4 In the event Contractor's failure to perform arises out of a Force Majeure Event, Contractor agrees to use commercially reasonable best efforts to obtain goods or services from other sources, if applicable, and to otherwise mitigate the damages...

	8.21 Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue
	8.22 Independent Contractor Status
	8.22.1 This Contract is by and between the County and the Contractor and is not intended, and shall not be construed, to create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture, or association, as between the County and the Con...
	8.22.2 The Contractor shall be solely liable and responsible for providing to, or on behalf of, all persons performing work pursuant to this Contract all compensation and benefits. The County shall have no liability or responsibility for the payment o...
	8.22.3 The Contractor understands and agrees that all persons performing work pursuant to this Contract are, for purposes of Workers' Compensation liability, solely employees of the Contractor and not employees of the County.  The Contractor shall be ...
	8.22.4 The Contractor shall adhere to the provisions stated in Paragraph 7.6 (Confidentiality).

	8.23 Indemnification
	8.23.1 The Contractor shall defend the County, its officers, employees, and agents (County Indemnitees) from and against any and all claims, demands, suits or proceedings brought by a third party (third party can include an individual County employee)...
	8.23.2 Intellectual Property Indemnification
	8.23.2.1 Contractor shall defend County, its officers, employees, and agents, from and against any and all claims, demands, suits or proceedings brought against the County by a third party (“IP Claim”) to the extent such IP Claim alleges that the Coun...
	8.23.2.2 County shall notify Contractor, in writing, as soon as practicable of any claim or action alleging such infringement. If any Indemnified Item hereunder becomes the subject of an Infringement Claim under Paragraph 8.23.2, (Intellectual Propert...
	8.23.2.3 If Contractor determines none of the foregoing is commercially practicable then, Contractor shall have the right, at its sole option, to elect to terminate this Contract, and refund County any prepaid Fees related to the Cloud Service prorate...


	8.24 Limitation of Liability
	8.25 General Provisions for all Insurance Coverage
	8.25.1 Without limiting Contractor's indemnification of County, and in the performance of this Contract and until all of its obligations pursuant to this Contract have been met, Contractor shall provide and maintain at its own expense insurance covera...
	8.25.2 Evidence of Coverage and Notice to County
	8.25.2.1 Certificate(s) of insurance coverage (Certificate) satisfactory to County, and a copy of an Additional Insured endorsement confirming County and its Agents (defined below) has been given Insured status under the Contractor’s General Liability...
	8.25.2.2 Renewal Certificates shall be provided to County not less than ten (10) days prior to Contractor’s policy expiration dates.
	8.25.2.3 Certificates shall identify all Required Insurance coverage types and limits specified herein, reference this Contract by name or number, and be signed by an authorized representative of the insurer(s).  The Insured party named on the Certifi...
	8.25.2.4 Neither the County’s failure to obtain, nor the County’s receipt of, or failure to object to a non-complying insurance certificate or endorsement, or any other insurance documentation or information provided by the Contractor, its insurance b...
	8.25.2.5 Certificates and copies of any required endorsements shall be sent to:
	8.25.2.6 Contractor also shall promptly report to County any injury or property damage accident or incident, including any injury to a Contractor employee occurring on County property, and any loss, disappearance, destruction, misuse, or theft of Coun...

	8.25.3 Additional Insured Status and Scope of Coverage
	8.25.4 Cancellation of or Changes in Insurance
	8.25.5 Failure to Maintain Insurance
	8.25.6 Insurer Financial Ratings
	8.25.7 Contractor’s Insurance Shall Be Primary
	8.25.8 Waivers of Subrogation
	8.25.9 Subcontractor Insurance Coverage Requirements
	8.25.10 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions (SIRs)
	8.25.11 Claims Made Coverage
	8.25.12 Application of Excess Liability Coverage
	8.25.13 Separation of Insureds
	8.25.14 Alternative Risk Financing Programs
	8.25.15 County Review and Approval of Insurance Requirements

	8.26 Insurance Coverage
	8.26.1 Commercial General Liability insurance (providing scope of coverage equivalent to ISO policy form CG 00 01), naming County and its Agents as an additional insured, with limits of not less than:
	8.26.2 Automobile Liability insurance (providing scope of coverage equivalent to ISO policy form CA 00 01) with limits of not less than $1 million for bodily injury and property damage, in combined or equivalent split limits, for each single accident....
	8.26.3 Workers Compensation and Employers’ Liability insurance or qualified self- insurance satisfying statutory requirements, which includes Employers’ Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1 million per accident. If Contractor will provid...
	8.26.4 Unique Insurance Coverage
	8.26.4.1 Professional Liability-Errors and Omissions
	8.26.4.2 Property Coverage
	8.26.4.3 Technology Errors & Omissions Insurance
	8.26.4.4 Cyber Liability Insurance


	8.27 Liquidated Damages
	8.27.1 If the Contractor fails to submit the following completed (i.e. ready to undergo the acceptance process as reasonably determined by the County) Deliverables (the “Key Deliverables”) by the mutually agreed-upon delivery date for such Key Deliver...
	8.27.2 The liquidated damages described in Paragraph 8.27.1 shall not be considered a penalty, but rather a reasonable estimate of the County’s costs due to the failure of the Contractor to meet the mutually agreed-upon delivery date in the Project Sc...
	8.27.3 This Paragraph does not restrict or limit the County’s right to damages for any breach of this Contract as provided by law or Paragraph 8.27.2, nor does it limit the County’s right to terminate this Contract as agreed herein.

	8.28 Most Favored Public Entity
	8.29 Nondiscrimination and Affirmative Action
	8.29.1 The Contractor certifies and agrees that all persons employed by it, its affiliates, subsidiaries, or holding companies are and shall be treated equally without regard to or because of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, age,...
	8.29.2 The Contractor certifies each of the following: Contractor certifies to the County:
	8.29.3 The Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, ...
	8.29.4 The Contractor certifies and agrees that it will deal with its subcontractors, bidders, or vendors without regard to or because of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, marital status, or pol...
	8.29.5 The Contractor certifies and agrees that it, its affiliates, subsidiaries, or holding companies shall comply with all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations to the end that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, religion, an...
	8.29.6 The Contractor shall provide to County representatives such records as necessary to verify compliance with the provisions of this Paragraph 8.28 (Non-discrimination and Affirmative Action) when so requested by the County.
	8.29.7 If the County finds that any provisions of this Paragraph 8.28 (Non-discrimination and Affirmative Action) have been violated, such violation shall constitute a material breach of this Contract upon which the County may terminate or suspend thi...
	8.29.8 The parties agree that in the event the Contractor violates any of the anti-discrimination provisions of this Contract, the County shall, at its sole option, be entitled to the sum of five hundred dollars ($500) for each such violation not to e...

	8.30 Non Exclusivity
	8.31 Notice of Delays
	8.32 Notice of Disputes
	8.33 Notice to Employees Regarding the Federal Earned Income Credit
	8.34 Reserved
	8.35 Notices
	8.36 Prohibition Against Inducement or Persuasion
	8.37 Public Records Act
	8.37.1 Any documents submitted by the Contractor; all information obtained in connection with the County’s right to audit and inspect the Contractor’s documents, books, and accounting records pursuant to Paragraph 8.38 (Record Retention and Inspection...
	8.37.2 In the event the County is required to defend an action on a Public Records Act request for any of the aforementioned documents, information, books, records, and/or contents of a proposal marked “trade secret”, “confidential”, or “proprietary”,...

	8.38 Publicity
	8.38.1 The Contractor shall not disclose any details in connection with this Contract to any person or entity except as may be otherwise provided hereunder or required by law.  However, in recognizing the Contractor’s need to identify its services and...
	8.38.1.1 The Contractor shall develop all publicity material in a professional manner; and
	8.38.1.2 During the Term of this Contract, the Contractor shall not, and shall not authorize another to, publish or disseminate any commercial advertisements, press releases, feature articles, or other materials using the name of the County without th...

	8.38.2 The Contractor may, without the prior written consent of County, indicate in its proposals and sales materials that it has   been   awarded   this   Contract   with   the   County of Los Angeles, provided that the requirements of this Paragraph...

	8.39 Record Retention and Inspection-Audit Settlement
	8.39.1 The Contractor shall maintain accurate and complete financial records of its activities and operations relating to this Contract in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Contractor shall also maintain accurate and comple...
	8.39.2 In the event that an audit of the Contractor is conducted specifically regarding this Contract by any Federal or State auditor, or by any auditor or accountant employed by the Contractor or otherwise, then the Contractor shall file a copy of su...
	8.39.3 If, at any time during the Term of this Contract or within five (5) years after the expiration or termination of this Contract, representatives of the County conduct an audit of the Contractor regarding the work performed under this Contract, a...

	8.40 Recycled Bond Paper
	8.41 Subcontracting
	8.41.1 The requirements of this Contract may not be subcontracted by the Contractor without the advance approval of the County. Any attempt by the Contractor to subcontract without the prior consent of the County may be deemed a material breach of thi...
	8.41.2 The Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold the County harmless with respect to the activities of each and every Subcontractor in the same manner and to the same degree as if such Subcontractor(s) were the Contractor employees in accordanc...
	8.41.3 The Contractor shall remain fully responsible for all performances required of it under this Contract, including those that the Contractor has determined to subcontract, notwithstanding the County’s approval of the Contractor’s proposed subcont...
	8.41.4 The County’s consent to subcontract shall not waive the County’s right to prior and continuing approval of any and all personnel, including Subcontractor employees, providing services under this Contract.  The Contractor is responsible to notif...
	8.41.5 The County’s Project Director is authorized to act for and on behalf of the County with respect to approval of any subcontract and Subcontractor employees.  After approval of the subcontract by the County, Contractor shall forward a fully execu...
	8.41.6 The Contractor shall be solely liable and responsible for all payments or other compensation to all subcontractors and their officers, employees, agents, and successors in interest arising through services performed hereunder, notwithstanding t...
	8.41.7 The Contractor shall obtain certificates of insurance, which establish that the Subcontractor maintains all the programs of insurance required by the County from each approved Subcontractor.  Before any Subcontractor employee may perform any wo...

	8.42 Termination for Breach of Warranty to Maintain Compliance with County’s Child Support Compliance Program
	8.43 Termination for Convenience
	8.43.1 After receipt of a notice of termination and except as otherwise directed by the County, the Contractor shall:
	8.43.1.1 Stop work under this Contract on the date and to the extent specified in such notice, and

	8.43.2 All material including books, records, documents, or other evidence bearing on the costs and expenses of the Contractor under this Contract shall be maintained by the Contractor in accordance with Paragraph 8.38 (Record Retention and Inspection...

	8.44 Termination for Default
	8.44.1 The Contractor may, by thirty (30) days written notice to the County, terminate the Contract for failure to pay an undisputed invoice that is sixty (60) or more days late.
	8.44.2 The County may, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor (specifying the nature of the breach and specific steps that should be followed to cure the breach), terminate the whole or any part of this Contract or a Statement of Work, i...
	8.44.2.1 has materially breached this Contract; or
	8.44.2.2 Contractor fails to timely provide and/or satisfactorily perform any task, deliverable, service, or other work required either under this Contract; or
	8.44.2.3 Contractor fails to demonstrate a high probability of timely fulfillment of performance requirements under this Contract, or of any obligations of this Contract and in either case, fails to demonstrate convincing progress toward a cure within...

	8.44.3 Except with respect to defaults of any Subcontractor, the Contractor shall not be liable for its Subcontractor if its failure to perform this Contract arises out of causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor...
	8.44.4 The rights and remedies of the County provided in this Paragraph 8.44 (Termination for Default) shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Contract.

	8.45 Termination for Improper Consideration
	8.45.1 The County may, by written notice to the Contractor, immediately terminate the right of the Contractor to proceed under this Contract if it is found that consideration, in any form, was offered or given by the Contractor, either directly or thr...
	8.45.2 The Contractor must immediately report any attempt by a County officer,  employee, or agent to solicit such improper consideration. The report must be made to the Los Angeles County Fraud Hotline at (800) 544-6861 or https://fraud.lacounty.gov/.
	8.45.3 Among other items, such improper consideration may take the form of cash, discounts, services, the provision of travel or entertainment, or tangible gifts.

	8.46 Termination for Insolvency
	8.46.1 The County may terminate this Contract forthwith in the event of the occurrence of any of the following:
	8.46.1.1 Insolvency of the Contractor.  The Contractor shall be deemed to be insolvent if it has ceased to pay its debts for at least sixty (60) days in the ordinary course of business or cannot pay its debts as they become due, whether or not a petit...
	8.46.1.2 The filing of a voluntary or involuntary petition regarding the Contractor under the Federal Bankruptcy Code;
	8.46.1.3 The appointment of a Receiver or Trustee for the Contractor; or
	8.46.1.4 The execution by the Contractor of a general assignment for the benefit of creditors.

	8.46.2 The rights and remedies of the County provided in this Paragraph 8.45 (Termination for Insolvency) shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Contract.

	8.47 Termination for Non-Adherence of County Lobbyist Ordinance
	8.48 Termination for Non-Appropriation of Funds
	8.49 Validity or Unenforceability
	8.50 Waiver
	8.51 Warranty Against Contingent Fees
	8.51.1 The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Contract upon any Contract or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employe...
	8.51.2 For breach of this warranty, the County shall have the right to terminate this Contract and, at its sole discretion, deduct from the Contract price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerag...

	8.52 Warranty of Compliance with County’s Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program
	8.52.1 Contractor acknowledges that County has established a goal of ensuring that all individuals and businesses that benefit financially from County through contract are current in paying their property tax obligations (secured and unsecured roll) i...
	8.52.2 Unless Contractor qualifies for an exemption or exclusion, Contractor warrants and certifies that to the best of its knowledge it is now in compliance, and during the Term of this Contract will maintain compliance, with Los Angeles County Code ...

	8.53 Termination for Breach of Warranty to Maintain Compliance with County’s Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program
	8.54 Time Off for Voting
	8.55 Compliance with County’s Zero Tolerance Policy on Human Trafficking
	8.55.1 Contractor acknowledges that the County has established a Zero Tolerance Policy on Human Trafficking prohibiting contractors from engaging in human trafficking.
	8.55.2 If a Contractor or member of Contractor’s staff is convicted of a human trafficking offense, the County shall require that the Contractor or member of Contractor’s staff be removed immediately from performing services under the Contract. County...
	8.55.3 Disqualification of any member of Contractor’s staff pursuant to this paragraph shall not relieve Contractor of its obligation to complete all work in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract.

	8.56 Compliance with Fair Chance Employment Practices
	8.57 Compliance with the County Policy of Equity
	8.58 Prohibition from Participation in Future Solicitation(s)
	8.59 Injury and Illness Prevention Program
	8.60 Campaign Contribution Prohibition Following Final Decision in Contract Proceeding

	9.0 UNIQUE TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	9.1 System and Intellectual Property
	9.1.1 Access Grant
	9.1.1.1 Scope of Grant.
	9.1.1.2 Documentation.

	9.1.2 Work Product and Background Intellectual Property.
	9.1.2.1 Ownership of County Information.
	9.1.2.2 Third Party Product.


	9.2 Acceptance
	Acceptance Criteria shall be in accordance with Section 5 (Tasks and Deliverables) of Exhibit A or other applicable Statement of Work.

	9.3 Partial Acceptance for Releases 1 and 2, and Final Acceptance
	Contractor will achieve Partial Acceptance for Releases 1 and 2, and Final Acceptance following Release 3, as provided for in Section 5.3.2.4 of Exhibit A (Statement of Work). Following Contractor achieving Partial Acceptance(s) and Final Acceptance, ...
	9.4 Suspension
	9.5 Disabling Device
	9.6 Proprietary Rights
	9.6.1 Ownership Rights.  As between Contractor and County, all rights, title and interest in and to all intellectual property rights in the System and related services and Contractor Confidential Information are and will remain owned exclusively by Co...
	9.6.2 Aggregated Data. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Contractor may collect and use quantitative information, during and after the Term, derived from County’s use of the System (e.g. number of projects, frequency of logins) solely in aggre...
	9.6.3 Feedback. To the extent that County provides any recommendations, suggestions, proposals, ideas, improvements, or other feedback regarding the System or Documentation (“Feedback”), County hereby grants Contractor an irrevocable perpetual license...
	9.6.4 Restrictions. County shall not: (a) decompile, disassemble, reverse engineer, or otherwise attempt to derive the source code, structure, or algorithms of the System (except to the extent expressly permitted by applicable law notwithstanding this...
	9.6.5 Authorized Users. Only Authorized Users are permitted to access and use the System, as authorized by the County. Authorized Users, who are suppliers/third-party vendors/contractors, may only access and use the “supplier portal” portion of the Sy...
	9.6.6 Configuration of the System. Customer is authorized to perform configurations subject to ensuring its personnel and Authorized Users comply with the Contractor Guidelines for Configurations attached hereto as Exhibit J-4.
	9.6.7 Third-Party Applications.  Contractor may make third-party products or services, authorized by the County, available to County through or in connection with the System (“Third-Party Applications”).  Certain providers of Third-Party Applications ...
	9.6.8 Any and all materials, software and tools which are developed or were originally acquired by the Contractor outside the scope of this Contract, which the Contractor desires to use hereunder, and which the Contractor considers to be proprietary o...
	9.6.9 The County will use reasonable means to ensure that the Contractor’s proprietary and/or confidential items are safeguarded and held in confidence.  The County agrees not to reproduce, distribute or disclose to non-County entities any such propri...
	9.6.10 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, the County will not be obligated to the Contractor in any way under subparagraph 9.6.4 for any of the Contractor’s proprietary and/or confidential items which are not plainly and prominently...
	9.6.11 All the rights and obligations of this Paragraph 9.5 shall survive the expiration or termination of this Contract.

	9.7 Non-Infringement
	9.8 Pending Litigation
	9.9 Reserved
	9.10 Warranties regarding the System and Services
	9.11 Other Warranties
	9.12 Support Services
	9.13 System Performance Requirements
	9.14 Termination Transition Services
	9.15 Information Security and Privacy Requirements
	9.16 Data Destruction

	10.0 SURVIVAL

	Exhibit B - Pricing Schedule 7.8.2025.pdf
	Sheet1

	Exhibit B - Pricing Schedule 7.8.2025.pdf
	Sheet1


	Exhibit A - SOW for e-Procurement 7.21.2025.pdf
	1.0 INTRODUCTION
	1.1 Background
	1.2 Background of Current System
	1.2.1 Procurement System Architecture


	2.0 SCOPE SUMMARY
	2.1 Provide a centralized and standardized, configurable Contractor hosted, fully integrated SaaS System that will support County processes, procedures, workflows and forms that can be used by County Departments, while reducing the need for paper/hard...
	2.2 Provide a user friendly, clear and intuitive System and user interface to aid in adoption, acceptance and use of the System Countywide.
	2.3 Provide comprehensive procurement reports, analytics and business intelligence tools;
	2.4 Provide an easy-to-use public-facing portal with features such as vendor registration, including files attachments i.e. certifications, proof of insurance, account maintenance, access to bid opportunities and secure/confidential features such as b...
	2.5 Centralized, mobile and user-friendly System that integrates all the components of the procurement process seamlessly and automates manual processes including alerts and approvals, with the capability to process transactions based on the volume an...
	2.6 Provide all professional services for configurations, in scope data conversion and migration, reports, dashboards, development of forms, integration, implementation, testing, training and post production support;
	2.7 Provide the flexibility to take advantage of advancements in functionality and technology that would enable significant improvements in business and administrative practices and efficiencies as part of the Subscription Services package applicable ...
	2.8 Provide ability to support file attachments and export procurement data (standard System file formats);
	2.9 Provide transparency of County processes, vendor utilization, and County procurements;
	2.10 Reduce/eliminate duplication of work and streamline procurement processes;
	2.11 Host internal catalogs and interface through punch out to vendor catalogs for secure purchasing efficiency with approved suppliers as of Go-Live for Release 2;

	3.0 ADMINISTRATION
	3.1 County Resources
	3.1.1 County’s Project Director
	3.1.2 County’s Project Manager
	3.1.3 Designated County Staff

	3.2 Contractor Furnished Items
	3.3 Contractor Resources: Key Staff
	3.3.1 Contractor Project Director
	3.3.2 Contractor’s Project Manager


	4.0 PROJECT MANAGEMENT
	4.1 General Requirements
	4.1.1 The Contractor shall employ best practices and standards in the performance of all work, including but not limited to the following: full planning, monitoring, supervision, risk management tracking, and control for all project activities during ...
	4.1.2 The Contractor shall provide a complete and comprehensive set of services for the implementation and deployment of the System.
	4.1.3 Contractor staff shall be responsible for specific activities, as determined by Contractor’s Project Manager, including working with County staff, providing technical expertise needed to implement and deploy the System, developing workflows, req...
	4.1.4 After an unsuccessful escalation process following discussion with the Contractor, the County reserves the right to require a change in the Contractor’s staff if the assigned Contractor’s staff is not, in the opinion of the County, adequately se...
	4.1.5 At County’s request and discretion, Contractor is required to attend scheduled meetings and any ad-hoc meetings, which will be virtual, unless County requires an in-person meeting in a particular instance, with reasonable advance notice from the...

	4.2 Project Phases
	4.2.1 Phase 1 - Discovery/Planning (Align)
	4.2.2 Phase 2 - Implementation (Envision)
	4.2.3 Phase 3 - Deployment (Achieve)
	4.2.4 Phase 4 - Post-Implementation Support (Hypercare)
	4.2.5 Phase 5 - Subscription Services


	5.0 TASKS & DELIVERABLES
	5.1 Phase 1 - Discovery/Planning
	5.1.1 Task 1: Incoming Orientation Plan
	5.1.1.1 Contractor shall plan and conduct an Incoming Orientation Plan meeting with ISD, and other project stakeholders. Contractor shall develop a draft meeting agenda prior to conducting the meeting.
	5.1.1.2 Incoming Orientation Plan for System shall include:
	1. Any information, data, and documentation required from existing systems, consultants and subject matter experts.
	2. Activities needed to ensure appropriate knowledge transfer from existing systems, consultants and subject matter experts to Contractor, regarding existing functionality and business processes.
	3. The roles and responsibilities assigned to County personnel and to the Contractor for all activities.

	5.1.1.3 Contractor shall submit a draft meeting agenda to the County Project Manager within five (5) business days following Contract's Effective Date for approval.

	DELIVERABLE 1 – Incoming Orientation Agenda and Plan
	€ Incoming Orientation Agenda
	€ Incoming Orientation Plan for eProcurement System
	€ Conduct the Incoming Orientation Plan Meeting within seven (7) business days following Contract's Effective Date
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 1.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.1.2 Task 2: Business Process Review
	5.1.2.1 The Contractor and the County will collaborate to identify the list of To-Be processes to be reviewed, designed, and enabled;
	5.1.2.2 Workshops by functional area, including System functionality and business intelligence/data analytic capabilities;
	5.1.2.3 Use of the selected solution software in the facilitation of the workshops;
	5.1.2.4 Identification of process improvement opportunities for each process area;
	5.1.2.5 Identification of change impacts;
	5.1.2.6 Inclusion of agency participants beyond the County Project Team members; and
	5.1.2.7 Production of To-Be business process design documents that capture a profile of the business process, process flow diagrams, inputs, outputs, and linkages to other processes and modules.
	5.1.2.8 Conduct an impact assessment of the To-Be-Process; prepare and provide the County with an impact assessment report which shall include identification of the critical impacts, insufficiently described requirements and mitigation measures to be ...
	5.1.2.9 Policy development is not included in the scope of this proposal. Any relevant and required updates (change impacts), resulting from the Contractor implementation will be identified by the County during the Business Process Review deliverable ...

	5.1.3 Task 3: Implementation Plan and Schedule
	5.1.3.1 The Implementation Plan shall, at a minimum, include the following:
	1. A plan for managing, monitoring and tracking of progress of completion of tasks and Deliverables throughout the entire Implementation of the System as required in this SOW,
	2. An approach to completing all work described in this SOW, including a work breakdown structure with task descriptions, associated Deliverables, and resource requirements, including but not limited to task and Deliverable schedules, dependencies, cr...
	3. Configuration Management. All configuration items will be listed and fully tracked from the approved design until full acceptance, in the CSE (Customer Support Extranet) system of the Contractor. County’s personnel will enter their test results in ...
	4. Overall project management methodology and any additional items identified by the Contractor required for a successful implementation,
	5. Approach to meeting deadlines and handling delays.
	6. Proposed County review/resolution period for each Deliverable.
	7. Procedures for the System production turnover.

	5.1.3.2 Implementation Schedule which shall include, at a minimum, the following:
	1. All Deliverables, tasks, and other work.
	2. Start date and completion date for each Deliverable, task, and other work.
	3. Proposed County review period for each Deliverable.
	4. Time required to complete all tasks and subtasks.
	5. Specific milestones to determine the project’s progress and to   evaluate Contractor’s performance in meeting the requirements of this contract;


	DELIVERABLE 3 – Implementation Plan and Schedule
	€ Implementation Plan*
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 3.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.

	5.2 Phase 2 - Implementation
	5.2.1 Task 4: Quality Control and Issue Resolution Plan
	5.2.1.1 Quality Control
	1. Method in which Contractor intends to ensure the quality of the services provided under the Contract.
	2. The Resolution process from the time an issue is identified until it is resolved, including the escalation process that takes place when an issue cannot be resolved without involving higher level Contractor personnel. Include the names and contact ...
	3. Method of monitoring to ensure that Contract requirements are being met, including, but not limited to response times, Operations, Maintenance, Performance and Service Level Requirements, and how often reports identifying these issues are reviewed ...
	4. Mechanism Contractor uses to maintain records of all maintenance activity conducted by Contractor, any corrective action taken, the time a problem was first identified, a clear description of the problem, and the time elapsed between identification...
	5. Explanation of the process used from the time a formal complaint or Contract Discrepancy Report (CDR) has been received until such time a complaint or CDR has been resolved and completed.

	5.2.1.2 Issue Resolution
	1. Issue identification;
	2. Issue tracking, reporting, and trending;
	3. Issue review, prioritization, and assignment;
	4. Issue analysis;
	5. The Resolution process from the time an issue is identified until it  has been resolved;
	6. Issue escalation; including the escalation process that takes place, the names and contact information of those involved in the escalation process and the time frames or schedules of when they would be contacted;
	7. Issue follow-up (for resolutions with lead time); and
	8. Impact to the overall project schedule and budget.


	DELIVERABLE 4 – Quality Control and Issue Resolution Plan
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 4.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.2 Task 5: Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan
	5.2.2.1 This Task 5 deliverable describes the County’s business continuity and disaster recovery plan (the “Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan) to be developed to ensure the County maintains or quickly resumes its essential functions in the ev...
	5.2.2.2 The Contractor shall provide a Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan, including details on how System and software backups and backups of County data are performed. The Contractor will leverage Contractor’s Contingency Plan when preparing...
	5.2.2.3 The Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan shall include a business impact analysis to determine the areas in the County’s technical infrastructure that are required. The Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan shall describe each of th...
	5.2.2.4 The Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan shall serve as a master plan for responding to System outages, ensuring continuity of business operations, and recovery from a disaster. In this Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan, Contrac...
	5.2.2.4.1 Business impact analysis of the System functionality and the County Data for the System that identifies and prioritizes the critical systems and components;
	5.2.2.4.2  Emergency mode of operations that provides the procedures to enable business continuity and recover from the emergency mode of operation with minimal impact on Users; and
	5.2.2.4.3 Command and control processes and procedures that delineate specific roles and responsibilities, communication, and actions that County’s staff must follow in an emergency.
	5.2.2.5 Procedures for performing business continuity/disaster recovery testing during implementation.   In addition to the testing during implementation, the business continuity/disaster recovery testing should be conducted annually. The procedure fo...
	5.2.2.5.1 Readiness to switch-over to the backup site for Production Use when primary site is down; Production Use is the actual use of the System in the production environment to process live data in County's day-to-day operations and use of the System.
	5.2.2.5.2 Test results reports; and
	5.2.2.5.3 County updates to the Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan based on revisions to Contractor’s Business Continuity / Disaster Recovery Plan.
	5.2.2.6 Exercise log that documents the calendar day(s) when the County’s Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan is tested, what the nature of the test(s) are, any problems identified during each test, and corrective actions to be taken. Establish...
	5.2.2.7 Revision history that documents any changes made to the Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan. Contractor shall maintain a backup of the System, County Data, and System configuration as set forth in the Contract and per contractual RPO co...

	DELIVERABLE 5 – Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery Plan
	5.2.3 Task 6: Project Controls, Standards, and Procedures (Phase 2 – Implementation)
	5.2.3.1 Managing Project Documentation
	5.2.3.2 Meeting Procedures
	5.2.3.3 Business Process Review Standards
	5.2.3.4 Development Standards
	5.2.3.5 Configuration Standards
	5.2.3.6 Software Change Control Procedures
	5.2.3.7 Quality Assurance
	5.2.3.8 Scope Management
	5.2.3.9 Deliverable Outlines
	5.2.3.10 Deliverable Reviews
	5.2.3.11 Risk Mitigation

	DELIVERABLE 6 – Project Control, Standards, and Procedures
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 6.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.4 Task 7: Change Management and Communications Plan
	5.2.4.1 The Contractor shall provide a method and approach, guidance for best practices, and mentoring to support a successful transition to the new System enabled business processes and related processes affected by the software. The Contractor shall...
	5.2.4.2 The Contractor shall develop a Communications Plan document that defines the communication objectives, audiences (including the respective level of detail), recommended communications document and delivery methods, recommended communication ve...
	5.2.4.3 The Change Management and Communication Plan shall include at a minimum the following:
	1. Approach to County communications, configuration management, stakeholder communication.  (Changes, in this context, refer to changing the functionality of the System or adding additional functionality.)
	2. The approach shall ensure that the impacts and rationale for each change are analyzed, documented and coordinated before being approved. The change management process may vary from item to item, as determined by the County.
	3. A Communications Schedule Matrix to manage on-going stakeholder communications. It shall include a comprehensive listing of the County communication vehicles as well as recommendations of when to use each.
	4. The roles and responsibilities assigned to County personnel and to the Contractor in the communications process.


	DELIVERABLE 7 – Change Management and Communications Plan
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 7.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.5 Task 8: Project Work Status Report
	5.2.5.1 A listing of significant departures from the Implementation Plan with explanations of causes and effects on other areas, and remedies to achieve realignment;
	5.2.5.2 Changes to schedule
	5.2.5.3 A listing of tasks completed since the last report, including progress/completion of configuration work;
	5.2.5.4 A listing of tasks that were delayed and reasons for delay, with revised completion dates and remediation steps;
	5.2.5.5 Updates for previously delayed tasks;
	5.2.5.6 Planned activities for the next scheduled period;
	5.2.5.7 Identification and discussion of any project risks, with proposed mitigation; and
	5.2.5.8 Summary of major concerns and issues encountered;
	5.2.5.9 Identification and discussion of any security issues; and
	5.2.5.10 Any other topics that require attention from the County.

	DELIVERABLE 8 – Project Work Status Reports
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 8.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.6 Task 9: Functional Requirements
	5.2.6.1 Contractor shall provide an eProcurement System that meets the functional requirements identified in SOW Attachment 1 (Functional Requirements), as indicated as ‘Available’ or ‘Configurable’ by Contractor. The System shall not be limited to th...
	5.2.6.2 Contractor shall document its design for the System and provide a Functional Requirements Document to demonstrate that it meets the: (i) functional requirements set forth in SOW Attachment 1 (Functional Requirements) as indicated as ‘Available...
	5.2.6.3 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Functional Requirements Documents and determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Contractor will submit a report indicating such for County's review and approv...

	DELIVERABLE 9 – Functional Requirements
	€ Functional Requirements meeting the Requirements of SOW Attachment 1 (Functional Requirements)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 9.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.7 Task 10: Technical Requirements
	5.2.7.1 Contractor shall provide an eProcurement System that meets the Technical Requirements identified in SOW Attachment 2 (Technical Requirements), as indicated as ‘Available’ or ‘Configurable’ by Contractor. The System shall not be limited to this...
	5.2.7.2 Contractor shall document its design for the System and provide a Technical Requirements document for the System to demonstrate that it meets the: (i) technical requirements set forth in SOW Attachment 2 (Technical Requirements) as indicated a...
	5.2.7.3 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Technical Requirements Documents and determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Contractor will submit a report indicating such for County's review and approva...

	DELIVERABLE 10 – Technical Requirements
	€ Technical Requirements meeting the Requirements of SOW Attachment 2 (Technical Requirements)
	€ Technical Requirements Document for Release 1*
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 10.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.8 Task 11: Configuration Requirements
	5.2.8.1 Contractor shall provide an eProcurement System that meets the requirements identified in SOW Attachment 3 (Configuration Requirements) as ‘Available’ or ‘Configurable’. The System shall not be limited to this set of attributes if the offered ...
	5.2.8.2 Contractor shall document its design for the System and provide a Configuration Requirements document for the System to demonstrate that it meets the: (i) configuration requirements set forth in SOW Attachment 3 (Configuration Requirements), i...
	5.2.8.3 The Contractor will configure a single purchasing workflow structure  that meets the County's requirements for each area (Requisition, Purchase Order, Receipts, Invoice, and Credit Memos) to be used Countywide. To assure the single workflow vi...
	5.2.8.4 Contractor shall provide a Configuration Management Plan which shall be submitted as required throughout the term of the Contract, as requested by the County. The Configuration Management Plan shall include, but not limited to the following:
	5.2.8.5 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Configuration Requirements and determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Contractor will submit a report indicating such for County's review and approval. If ...

	DELIVERABLE 11 – Configuration Requirements
	€ Configuration Requirements meeting the Requirements of SOW Attachment 3 (Configuration Requirements) For Release 1
	€ Configuration Requirements meeting the Requirements of SOW Attachment 3 (Configuration Requirements) for Release 2
	€ Configuration Requirements Document For Release 1*
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 11.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.9 TASK 12: Use of System Through SaaS Subscription Services
	5.2.10 Task 13: Interfaces and Integrations with Other Systems
	5.2.10.1 Using downloaded flat files from eCAPS, Contractor's proposed System shall interface with through uploading County data and transactions through an Extract, Transform and Load (ETL) process to and from eCAPS.
	5.2.10.2 Contractor’s System shall provide Single Sign On (SSO) capability based on SAML/OpenID Connect and single identity provider, for County Users using the County's Enterprise Identity & Access Management Directory (based upon Microsoft Azure Act...
	5.2.10.3 The System shall have or work with 3rd party configurable API (application program interface) application infrastructure to support extended integrations with eCAPS Financials and as well as external operational systems.
	5.2.10.4 The Contractor shall be responsible for completing the extract, transformation, and export\import, development, testing, and Deliverables to support the integrations with eCAPS Financials; and, the operational support systems that require and...
	5.2.10.5 The Contractor shall comply with the County’s integration and security protocols and standards for integration file types, network transmission, encryption, etc as indicated as ‘Available’ or ‘Configurable’ in SOW Attachment 2 (Technical Requ...
	5.2.10.6 The Contractor shall develop an Integration and Interface Plan and corresponding schedule, which shall be submitted to the County Project Manager for review and approval and shall include at a minimum:
	1. Contractors approach and methodology
	2. Analysis and Design
	▪ Review and assess County interfaces includes inbound\outboard type, data or transactional, batch or real time.
	▪ Complete the data mapping requirements for each integration Deliverable.  Includes data conversion requirements.
	▪ High-level integration design which shall include a listing of the in-scope integrations, requirements for a successful data and system integration, the expected behavior and features of the integration, and related systems.

	3. Development and Unit Test approach
	4. Testing and Reconciliation Processes
	5. Technical Requirements – Tools, application infrastructure, and resources.  Includes post interface file management, back up, and retention schedule
	6. Roles and responsibilities of County and Contractor in the design, development, and testing of integrations.
	7. A project schedule

	5.2.10.7 The System shall integrate with the County’s enterprise financial system eCAPS Financials.  Integration requirements include:
	1. Inventory Replenishment
	▪ System shall integrate with eCAPS Inventory Replenishment (IREP), and eCAPS Inventory.
	▪ System shall read the Inventory Replenishment table for items that have been selected for replenishment.
	▪ System shall replicate the Inventory Replenishment job that creates the draft requisition (RQN) and delivery order (DO) documents for warehouse replenishment.
	▪ Generate requisitions (RQN) documents for non-agreement inventory items
	▪ Generate delivery order (DO) documents for inventory items on agreement.
	▪ When generating procurement documents for replenishment, the System will identify inventory stock items based on a minimum but not limited to a combination of warehouse, commodity, stock suffix, and reference to a master agreement.

	2. Procurement of Stock Items
	▪ Ability for requisitions to reference inventory stock items and update stock items as requisitions are completed in the System.
	▪ Ability for purchase orders to reference inventory stock items and update stock items as requisitions are completed in the System.
	▪ Ability for receivers to reference inventory stock items and update stock items as requisitions are completed in the System.
	▪ Ability for payments to reference inventory stock items and update stock items as requisitions are completed in the System. Examples of inventory reference data from eCAPS Financials includes Department

	3. eCAPS Financials / Real-Time Encumbrances and Payments
	▪ Through the request to payment transactions in the System, the System shall integrate with eCAPS Financials for encumbrances and payments.
	▪ CEO Budget - Purchase Order Accrual and Commitment balances
	▪ Fiscal Year (FY), Budget Fiscal Year (BFY) and Accounting Period (Per)
	▪ Edit against multiple eCAPS budgets as needed
	▪ Encumbrances (purchase orders, delivery orders, contracts,  work orders, and other items as agreed to by the parties)
	▪ Payment requests after matching that reference current BFY or prior BFY encumbrances
	▪ Event types to support encumbrances and payment requests
	▪ Integrations to permit Payment status information to be imported back into the System
	▪ Special processing rules during period 13 (adjustment period after FY is soft closed)
	▪ Pre-Encumbrances are not in scope and no pre-encumbrance data will be sent to the System.

	4. Vendors
	▪ The System shall utilize vendor data from eCAPS Financials for all applicable procurement transactions.
	▪ The instances of new vendors created in the System shall be integrated to the master vendor table(s) in eCAPS Financials. The integration will be limited to 1:1 vendor/headquarters.
	▪ The instances of updates to vendors in the System shall be integrated to the master vendor table(s) in eCAPS Financials for all relevant data required in eCAPS Financials.

	5. File Attachments
	▪ If the County decides to change to a new document management system during the implementation the Contractor will assess the change for scope and timeline.

	6. Procurement Exchanges
	The System shall integrate with both proprietary and non-proprietary procurement business exchanges for procurement transactions including purchase orders, receivers, invoices, etc.  This integration is to be enabled by the County.
	7. DHS Supply Chain
	8. Single sign-on is not available for Supplier authentication between the Ivalua portal and the current eCAPS Vendor portal.
	9. Completion of the following integrations:
	10. The integration to the eCAPS solution assumes a non-commodity based integration model for general ledger processing. For the inventory transactions integration will be commodity based.
	11. Budget integration and storing in the iValua solution is not assumed in scope; the eCAPS solution will serve as the source of truth for budget validation.
	12. County and Contractor will handle additional integrations outside of the scope by Contractor pursuant to the change order process (for example, to make available data to support ad hoc and departmental reporting as part of the additional integrati...
	13. Further, the integration with the County’s financial system, eCAPS, shall be with the eCAPS version that is in place at the time of the Go Live for Release 2.


	DELIVERABLE 13 – Interfaces and Integrations with Other Systems
	€ Interface and Integration for Release 1*
	€ Interface and Integration for Release 2*
	€ Interface and Integration Plan with a detailed Project Schedule
	€ Training and Knowledge Transfer for County to perform the future Integrations for the System by No Later Than the End of Release 2
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 13. Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.11 Task 14: Reports
	5.2.11.1 Reporting Requirements
	1. The range of reporting from the System shall be comprehensive including all System functional areas as well as where those functional areas intersect and are related, transactions and transaction types, organizations, budgets, vendors; etc.
	2. Reporting from the System shall include security, workflow, and where applicable the correlation of meta data for configurations to System functional areas.
	3. The System must have robust reporting and dashboard capability and allow users to choose the granularity of the information presented. Data must be reportable and exportable in multiple formats based on user requirements, roles and privileges.
	4. The System must have robust, preferably universal search (including search of meta data and within documents when appropriate) capability across all modules and functions.
	5. The Contractor shall demonstrate the reporting, spend analytics, and dashboard capability of the System.
	6. Dashboards in the System shall be an in-built feature and configurable to make more effective use of data by providing better insights for users to make informed decisions.
	7. The System shall have in-built and sophisticated data analytics features including development of data taxonomies to classify data.
	8. Reporting from the System shall support use case categories including operational (cycle times), financial, performance matrixes, etc.
	9. The Contractor shall be responsible for completing the analysis, design, and development of the reports and dashboards from the functional use cases provided by the County within the approved design. The Contractor shall be responsible for completi...
	10. The generation of reports should not degrade application system performance provided they comply with best configuration practices.
	11. The System shall support the development of custom reports by County staff. County requires an approach from Contractor so that County may develop and implement additional reports outside the scope of Contractor.  The approach shall include the me...

	5.2.11.2 The Contractor shall develop a detailed Reports Plan that meets the requirements listed above and shall include at a minimum:
	1. Contractor's approach and methodology
	2. Discovery, Analysis and Design
	3. An outline of the Systems application infrastructure and tools for reports, dashboards, data repository, data export, etc.
	4. Review and assessment of County functional use cases for reports and dashboards.
	5. Develop the technical design supporting report and dashboard query logic i.e. tables, table joins, filters, conditional logic, and data mapping requirements.
	6. Development and Unit Test approach
	7. Testing and Reconciliation processes required to compare and verify the accuracy of report logic to report outputs.
	8.  List of all available reports
	9. The project schedule for report availability

	5.2.11.3 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Detailed Reports Plans and List of Available Reports and determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Contractor will submit a report indicating such for County...

	DELIVERABLE 14 – Reporting
	€ Detailed Reports Plan, List of Available Reports for Release 1, and Project Schedule*
	€  Detailed Reports Plan, List of Available Reports for Release 2, and Project Schedule*
	€ Detailed Reports Plan, List of Available Reports for Release 3, and Project Schedule
	€ Report for Release 3 Indicating Completion of Review for Any Needed Changes/Adjustments (If Changes/Adjustments are needed, it will be handled separately as part of the change order process.)
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 14.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.2.12 Task 15: Application Security Configuration
	5.2.12.1 The System shall provide application controls to prevent unauthorized use of the System, maintain System process controls, and log all transactions. In addition, the System shall provide security to limit availability to application functiona...
	5.2.12.2 Security Services
	5.2.12.3 Completed Security Configuration

	DELIVERABLE 15 – Security Configuration
	Application Security Configuration Document
	SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 15.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.

	5.3 Phase 3- Implementation/Deployment
	5.3.1 Task 16:  Data Migration – Conversion
	5.3.1.1 Convert and Archive Legacy Data
	1. Through the implementation of the new System, the County expects to archive legacy data not converted to the new System.   Data conversion into the new System will include at a minimum data that is required for the System to support ongoing busines...
	2. Open existing financial encumbrances in eCAPS will not be converted into the new System.
	3. As part of the implementation services, the Contractor shall load all or some of the historical legacy data to a data store hosted by the County.
	4. Contractor shall inform County’s Project Manager of any alternative approach for conversion of legacy data that could offer better outcomes, lower cost or lower risk to the County.
	5. Contractor will develop a plan for the data conversion that will include but not limited to the following:
	▪ Developing an inventory of all legacy data to be converted required by the System;
	▪ Performing a mapping of legacy system(s) data schemes to the new System schemes;
	▪ Developing multiple chart of account cross-walks including any extensions to the common elements in use by County agencies;
	▪ Establishing the vendor master file from multiple legacy data sources;
	▪ Developing an assessment of gaps between legacy data and System data requirements and formulating options to address those gaps.  Resolving any differences in data identification schemes; for example, consolidating purchasing document numbers or inv...
	▪ Developing conversion programs to automate the conversion of data;
	▪ Performing testing and implementing quality assurance protocols to ensure the data is converted accurately;
	▪ Where applicable developing a process to batch load legacy data into the System.

	6. Contractor shall take the lead to complete the tasks in the data conversion plan.  Where applicable the Contractor shall engage County SMEs for functional and technical input required to complete the data conversion Deliverables. Contractor will id...
	7. The Contractor shall successfully complete the data conversion and migration tests. The Contractor shall deliver to the County a “Data Migration Test Results Report”, within five (5) business days of successful completion of the data migration and ...
	8. The County is responsible for extraction, data cleansing, and quality assurance of data from County systems based on templates provided by the Contractor implementation team.  The number of mock cutovers is limited to three per release, unless the ...


	DELIVERABLE 16 – Data Conversion
	€ Data Conversion Plan
	€ Data Migration Test Results Report*
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 16.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.3.2 Task 17: Requirements Verification and Testing
	5.3.2.1 Requirements Verification for Releases 1 and 2
	1. Thoroughly test all System components throughout the testing phases of the project;
	2. Review “Available” and “Configurable” System Functional Requirements (SOW Attachment 1), Technical Requirements (SOW Attachment 2), and System Configuration Requirements (SOW Attachment 3)
	3. Conduct any indicated discovery or clarification sessions with County staff, subject matter experts, and County-specified key Users of the System to ensure a common understanding of the requirements.
	4. Request additional information, as appropriate, to ensure a thorough understanding of the requirements.

	5.3.2.2 System Testing for Releases 1 and 2
	1. Unit Testing
	2. System Testing
	3. Integration Testing
	4. Performance (load/stress) Testing
	5. Testing Services
	6. User Acceptance Testing
	▪ End to end testing of program increments;
	▪ Creating the acceptance testing environments;
	▪ Loading and revising, as needed, configuration values, converting data, and establishing user security in accordance with the “go-live” deployment plan;
	▪ The Contractor will provide assistance with sample test scripts to the County. Parties agree assistance would include County first providing use cases/scripts, and Contractor would then point to the detailed integrated system test scripts. County wo...
	▪ Ensuring that all integrations to other County Systems are connected to the testing environment for proper acceptance testing; The County is responsible is preparing their systems for these tests.
	▪ Submitting off-line jobs, if needed.  The setup, configuration, and run of batch jobs shall include and be complete with upstream/downstream dependencies implemented and in/out conditions defined;
	▪ Performing backups.  Backups shall include data, application, configuration, and interface files;
	▪ Refresh environment as required;
	▪ Tracking, resolving & reporting issues for those issues identified during testing;
	▪ Analyzing and explaining outcomes; and
	▪ Supporting the County in answering questions from testers as they arise.
	▪ The County will be responsible for coordinating, providing facilities for (e.g., computers, rooms, etc.) and delivering the acceptance testing with the County testers.
	▪ The County will provide a Test Lead. The Test Lead will help coordinate questions from County testers to the Contractor.
	▪ The Contractor will be responsible for support, triage, defect resolution, and coordinating the availability of the system with the County test lead.
	▪ Successful completion of this test will be required before the software can be approved for production use.


	5.3.2.3 System Requirements Verification and Testing Document (SRD)
	5.3.2.4 Partial Acceptance for Releases 1 and 2 and Final Acceptance Following Release 3
	5.3.2.5 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Testing Plans, Scripts, Processes, and Tools for Testing Services, and System Requirements Documents (SRDs), and determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Con...

	DELIVERABLE 17 – Requirements Verification & Testing
	€ Testing Plans, Scripts, Processes, and Tools for Testing Services identified in Section 5.3.2.2 for Release 1
	€ System Requirements Document (SRD) for Release 1*
	€ Partial Acceptance Report for Release 1
	€ Partial Acceptance Certification for Release 1
	€ Testing Plans, Scripts, Processes, and Tools for Testing Services identified in Section 5.3.2.2 for Release 2*
	€ System Requirements Document (SRD) for Release 2*
	€ Partial Acceptance Report for Release 2
	€ Partial Acceptance Certification for Release 2
	€ Report for Release 3 Indicating Completion of Review for Any Needed Changes/Adjustments (If Changes/Adjustments are needed, it will be handled separately as part of the change order process.)
	€ Final Acceptance Report
	€ Final Acceptance Certification
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 17.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.3.3 TASK 18: TRAINING
	5.3.3.1 Training Plan
	1. Project team training, including recording such trainings for up to forty (40) project team members, which may be further adjusted if its reasonable to do so;
	2. Administrator training that includes technical, security, and configurations training to support development, implementation, production and to support ongoing operations;
	3. End-User training to support implementation, new update rollouts and ongoing needs;
	4. Knowledge transfer to a core group of functional, administrative, programming, security, and other technical and operations personnel to support independent operations capability before conclusion of the Contractor’s post-implementation support res...

	5.3.3.2 Project Team Training
	1. System architecture, navigation and functionality;
	2. Configurable components and System options;
	3. Development components, including secure development techniques;
	4. Online and batch operations;
	5. Security and System options available;
	6. Application data model (through Ivalua);
	7. End-User Training

	5.3.3.3 End User Training
	1. Provide classroom materials to support the classroom training effort that have been customized to address specific software configuration and customizations made as part of the project;
	2. Develop all training materials, including training guides, training videos, quick reference guides, speaker notes, user materials and course curricula (including training objectives and outcomes);
	3. Work with assigned County staff to incorporate County policy, procedure, and specific personnel roles and responsibilities into the training materials;
	4. Provide a stable, tested training environment capable of testing all required functionality, which is pre-loaded with representative converted reference and historical County data that can become a starting point for creating training materials (in...
	5. Provide setup of training accounts, back up, restore, and troubleshooting assistance in the training environment as materials are prepared and customized and as end-user training proceeds;
	6. Building report development skill sets.
	8. In support of the establishment of appropriately trained County personnel across the agencies on the software tools and methodologies to address future reporting needs of the County, the Contractor shall provide the following services as part of it...
	▪ Reporting Tools Training Strategy development;
	▪ Needs assessment of agencies personnel;
	▪ Curriculum development and training content development;
	▪ Training execution;
	▪ Knowledge transfer assessment


	5.3.3.4 Ivalua Guides
	5.3.3.5 Training Evaluation
	5.3.3.6 County Trainer Training
	5.3.3.7 Technical Personnel Training
	1. Technical support;
	2. Application tools for monitoring and performance tuning of application events and data import/export;
	3. Troubleshooting;
	4. Procedures for handling software upgrades and maintenance an all other tasks necessary to provide support for the System;
	5. All components of the operating environment that are required of the County;
	6. Use of the Contractor’s development tools and application administration tools.

	5.3.3.8 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Training Plans, Training Materials and Training, Training Evaluation and Evaluation Results, and determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Contractor will sub...

	DELIVERABLE 18 – Training
	€ Training Plan for Release 1
	€ Training Materials for Release 1
	€ Training, Training Evaluation and Evaluation Results For Release 1*
	€ Training Plan for Release 2
	€ Training Materials for Release 2
	€ Training, Training Evaluation and Evaluation Results For Release 2*
	€ Report for Release 3 Indicating Completion of Review for Any Needed Changes/Adjustments (If Changes/Adjustments are needed, it will be handled separately as part of the change order process.)
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 18.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.3.4 Task 19: Documentation
	5.3.4.1 User Manual and Documentation for Releases 1 and 2
	1. Functional Help Desk contact information;
	2. Technical Help Desk contact information;
	3. Transaction Reference Guides, which include step-by-step procedures for executing each business process.

	5.3.4.2 Operations Manual and Support Documentation for Releases 1 and 2
	5.3.4.3 Technical Documentation
	5.3.4.4 Updated Design Document s
	5.3.4.5 Workstation Installation Procedures and Automated Installation Tools
	5.3.4.6 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior User Manual and Documentations, Operations Manual and Support Documentations, Technical Documentation, and Documentation of All Customizations/Configurations and Parameters, to determine if any ...

	DELIVERABLE 19 – Documentation
	€ User Manual and Documentation For Release 1
	€ Operations Manual and Support Documentation for Release 1
	€ User Manual and Documentation For Release 2
	€ Operations Manual and Support Documentation for Release 2*
	€ Fiscal Year End Close Step by Step Procedures
	€ New Fiscal Year Opening Step by Step Procedures
	€ Report for Release 3 Indicating Completion of Review for Any Needed Changes/Adjustments (If Changes/Adjustments are needed, it will be handled separately as part of the change order process.)
	€ Technical Documentation due at Release 1
	€ Documentation of All Customizations/Configurations and Parameters for Release 1
	€ Documentation of All Customizations/Configurations and Parameters for Release 2
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 19.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.3.5 Task 20: Implementation/Production- Planning and Preparation
	5.3.5.1 Deployment Cut-Over (Production) Plan for Releases 1 and 2
	1. Final data conversion activities;
	2. Activation of integration interfaces;
	3. Activation of batch cycle processes;
	4. Technical preparation and System changeover activities;
	5. Resolution of all identified security issues;
	6. Development of a cut-over activities checklist;
	7. Deployment schedule.

	5.3.5.2 Contingency Plan for Releases 1 and 2
	5.3.5.3 For Release 3, the parties will review the prior Deployment Cut Over Plans and Contingency Plans, to determine if any changes or adjustments need to occur.  If none are required, Contractor will submit a report indicating such for County's rev...

	DELIVERABLE 20 – Planning and Preparation
	€ Deployment Cut Over Plan for Release 1
	€ Contingency Plan for Release 1
	€ Deployment Cut Over Plan for Release 2
	€ Contingency Plan for Release 2
	€ Report for Release 3 Indicating Completion of Review for Any Needed Changes/Adjustments (If Changes/Adjustments are needed, it will be handled separately as part of the change order process.)
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 20.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.

	5.4 Phase 4 - Post-Implementation Support for Releases 1 and 2 (Cut-Over)
	5.4.1 Task 21: Production Transfer
	5.4.1.1 The Contractor shall present production procedures to the County Project Manager for each Release.
	5.4.1.2 The Contractor shall turn over all System components in a Systematic fashion into the production environment;
	5.4.1.3 The Contractor shall turn over all integration System components in a systematic fashion into the production environment;
	5.4.1.4 The Contractor shall ensure that all components and modules of the production environment can be operated online or run to completion as appropriate, and that all modules, job streams (or scripts) are properly documented according to agreed-up...
	5.4.1.5 A single "go-live" and support period will occur for each release, Release 1 and Release 2. The County will be responsible for ensuring all data migrations, users, and data are loaded in the System for each "go-live".
	5.4.1.6 At the completion of Release 1, the County will have ISD and other designated departments identified by County, deployed. Release 2 will be for remaining functionality not yet deployed and all in scope LA County Departments. The County will be...

	DELIVERABLE 21 – Production Transfer
	€ System Turnover Procedures Presentation for Release 1*
	€ System Turnover Procedures Presentation for Release 2*
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 21.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.4.2 Task 22: Post Implementation Support and Activities for Releases 1, 2 and 3 (Hypercare)
	5.4.2.1 The Contractor shall provide post-implementation support that shall include the following:
	5.4.2.2 The Contractor shall have adequate personnel to be responsible for addressing end user support of all production System issues during the 60 day period of hypercare for Partial Acceptance and Final Acceptance for Release 1, Release 2 and Relea...
	5.4.2.3 Contactor shall provide support for one month at one business analyst during the County’s first Financial Year-End close for the System, as requested by the County. As part of this work, Contactor shall provide on the spot support during the C...
	5.4.2.4 The Contractor shall assess the performance of the System throughout the post-implementation support period. If required, the assessments shall result in specific recommendations to improve performance as needed and the Contractor shall execut...
	5.4.2.5 The Contractor shall manage the deployment of any updates or patches (if any) during the Post-Implementation Support period.
	5.4.2.6 The Contractor shall provide monthly status reports of the support activities.
	5.4.2.7 Additionally, the Contractor shall document and provide the County with the procedures for 1) fiscal year-end close and 2) subsequent opening of the new fiscal year, by no later than Go-Live for Release 2. This document shall describe, in proc...
	5.4.2.8 The Contractor shall develop and provide Post-Implementation Support Guide (or presentation) and corresponding documentation to the County Project Manager.

	DELIVERABLE 22 – Post-Implementation Support
	Support Activity Status Report (twice a month) for Release 1
	€ Support Activity Status Report (twice a month) for Release 2
	€ Support Activity Status Report (twice a month) for Release 3
	€ Post-Implementation Support Guide and Documentation for Release 1
	€ Post-Implementation Support Guide and Documentation for Release 2
	€ Post-Implementation Support Guide and Documentation for Release 3
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 22.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.

	5.5 Phase 5 - Ongoing Operations
	5.5.1 Task 23: Knowledge Transfer
	DELIVERABLE 23 – Knowledge Transfer
	€ Knowledge Transfer Plan for Release 1
	€ Knowledge Transfer Plan for Release 2
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 23.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.5.2 Task 24: System Maintenance Plan
	Contractor will deliver System Maintenance as part of Subscription Services as specified in Exhibit J.
	5.5.3 Task 25: Outgoing Transition - Transition Services
	5.5.3.1 Complete a thorough assessment of the status and priority of all:
	1. Current work activities;
	2. Risks and issues;
	3. Deliverables;
	4. Configuration;
	5. Integrations;
	6. Development items;
	7. Environments;
	8. Staffing.

	5.5.3.2 Develop, in cooperation with the County, the Transition Plan that will guide the transfer of responsibilities and work activities. The Transition Plan will include, at a minimum:
	1. Schedule;
	2. Milestones;
	3. Costs Impacts;
	4. Work Activities;
	5. Assigned Personnel;
	6. Completion Criteria for all Items in the Assessment.


	DELIVERABLE 25 – Transition Services
	€ Transition Services Plan
	€ SOW Attachment 5 (Task/Deliverable Acceptance Form)
	Contractor shall carry out the activities described in Task 25.  Deliverables shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by the County Project Manager.
	5.5.4 Task 26: Contract Discrepancy Report


	6.0 OPTIONAL WORK AND/OR 3 MONTH AUDITOR CONTROLLER DESIGN, DEVELOPMENT, AND ALIGNMENT PHASE
	7.0 SUMMARY OF DELIVERABLES

	E-PROCUREMENT SYSTEM AND RELATED SERVICES BL_7.21.2025.pdf
	Subject
	It is REcommendED that THE Board:
	3. Approve and authorize the attached ISD appropriation adjustment (Attachment 2) to transfer $8.79 million from the Committed for Information Technology (IT) Enhancements, commonly known as the County’s IT Legacy Modernization Fund to fund Fiscal Yea...
	Purpose/Justification of Recommended Actions
	Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals

	ISD eProcurement BL - CIO Analysis.pdf
	Peter Loo

	ADP836D.tmp
	Subject
	It is REcommendED that THE Board:
	3. Approve and authorize the attached ISD appropriation adjustment (Attachment 2) to transfer $8.79 million from the Committed for Information Technology (IT) Enhancements, commonly known as the County’s IT Legacy Modernization Fund to fund Fiscal Yea...
	Purpose/Justification of Recommended Actions
	Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals

	ISD Legacy_$8.790M_eProcurement_revised 8.5.25.pdf
	BA

	E-PROCUREMENT SYSTEM AND RELATED SERVICES BL_8.7.2025_Final.pdf
	Subject
	It is REcommendED that THE Board:
	3. Approve and authorize the attached ISD appropriation adjustment (Attachment 2) to use $8,790,000 from the obligated fund balance Committed for Information Technology (IT) Enhancements, commonly known as the County’s IT Legacy Modernization Fund to ...
	Purpose/Justification of Recommended Actions
	Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals

	ISD eProcurement BL - CIO Analysis Final.pdf
	Peter Loo






